FORT MONROE

Dliete Froodain Liea———

Fort Monroe Authority Board of Trustees
Finance Committee Meeting
November 14, 2024
30 Ingalls RD, FMVEC
Fort Monroe, VA 23651
12:00-1:30 PM

PUBLIC MEETING: PLEASE POST

Call to Order 12:00 pm
1. Opening Comments Jay Joseph, Chair
2. Roll Call Carmen Borja, Assistant Secretary

3. General Public Comment

Action ltems
4. Minutes from September 12, 2024 Meeting Jay Joseph, Chair
e ACTION ITEM: Approve September 12, 2024 Meeting Minutes

5. FY24 Audit Report Remi Omiscore / Erin Davis
CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

¢ ACTION ITEM: Recommend FY24 Audit to Board

Reports and Briefings
6. Financial Report John Hutcheson, COO/CFO
e Year-to-date Financials
7. Chief Executive Officers Report John Hutcheson, Acting CEO
8. 2025 Proposed Meeting Calendar Carmen Borja, Assistant Secretary
Old Business
9. Moving Properties to the Marketplace John Hutcheson, COO/CFO

e Echelon Resources/FM Lofts LLC
¢ City of Hampton/Building 210



10.

11.

12.

13.

Utility Master Plan update John Hutcheson, COO/CFO
Closed Session Jay Joseph, Chair

e Inaccordance with VA Code §2.2-3711(A)(1) for “discussion, consideration, or
interviews of prospective candidates for employment”

Reconvene and Certification Carmen Borja, Assistant Secretary

Open Discussion Jay Joseph, Chair

Adjournment — 1:30

*** Next Meeting — February 6, 2025 ***



FORT MONROE

Dliete Froodain Liea———

Fort Monroe Authority Board of Trustees
Finance Committee Meeting
September 12, 2024
Meeting Minutes
DRAFT

The Fort Monroe Authority (FMA) Board of Trustees Finance Committee met on September 12,
2024, at 30 Ingalls Rd, Fort Monroe, Virginia 23651.

Members Present: Mr. Jay Joseph, Chairman
Delegate A.C. Cordoza
Ms. Mary Bunting
Mr. Brian Jackson
Members Absent:  Senator Mamie Locke

Staff Present: Mr. G. Glenn Oder
Mr. John Hutcheson

Others: Mr. Terrance McGovern
Call to order
1. Opening Comments Jay Joseph, Chairman
Chairman Jay Joseph called the meeting to order at 12:00 pm.
2. Roll Call Carmen Borja, Assistant Secretary

Mr. Hutcheson called the roll and determined a quorum was present.
Ms. Borja was not in attendance.

3. General Public Comment
There was no public comment.
Action Items
4. Approval of Minutes from June 3, 2024, Meeting (Appendix I)
Motion: | move the approval of the June 3, 2024, meeting minutes.
So Moved: Mary Bunting
Seconded: Brian Jackson

Discussion: None
Unanimously approved.

Reports and Briefings



5. Financial Report John Hutcheson, Deputy Executive Director
The Financial Report was provided as read-ahead (Appendix II).

Mr. Hutcheson stated to the committee that all in all, it has turned out to be a better year
than anticipated.

Mr. Hutcheson then gave the committee a breakdown of the 2026 expenditure plan and
explained justification of the 50M submitted budget request.

Mr. Hutcheson also informed the committee that the audit is expected to be completed
on 9/13/24 and would be presented at the November Finance Committee meeting.

6. Six-Year Capital Improvement Plan John Hutcheson, Deputy Executive Director
The Six-Year Capital Improvement Plan was provided as a read-ahead (Appendix III).

Mr. Hutcheson provided the committee with an overview of the Six-Year Capital
Improvement Plan.

The committee discussed.

Approval to recommend CIP to the FMA Board for Approval

Motion: | move the approval to recommend the CIP to the FMA Board for Approval.
So Moved: Mary Bunting

Seconded: Delegate A.C. Cordoza

Unanimously approved.

7. Executive Director's Report Glenn Oder, Chief Executive Officer

Chief Executive Officer Glenn Oder provided the committee with a brief overview of the
latest events that have taken place on the Fort.

Closed Session
8. Closed Session in accordance with VA Code 8§2.2-3711(A)(3).
“discussion or consideration” of the “disposition of publicly held real property, where discussion in
open meeting would adversely affect the bargaining position or negotiation strategy of the public

body’”.

Motion to move into Closed Session

Motion: | move that the Finance Committee move into Closed Session
So Moved: Mary Bunting

Seconded: Delegate A.C. Cordoza

Unanimously approved.
The committee moved into closed session.
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9. Reconvene in Open Session and Certification
Motion to move Reconvene in Open Session
Motion: | move that the Finance Committee Reconvene in Open Session
So Moved: Mary Bunting
Seconded: Delegate A.C. Cordoza
Committee Reconvened and Certified.
Motion to authorize staff to submit the proposed term sheet to the owner of the
Chamberlin
Motion: | move to authorize the FMA Staff to submit the proposed term sheet to the
owner of the Chamberlin
So Moved: Delegate A.C. Cordoza
Seconded: Brian Jackson
Unanimously approved.

Old Business
10. Moving Properties to the Marketplace Glenn Oder, Chief Executive Officer

Committee discussed during section six of CIP.

11. Utility Master Plan Update John Hutcheson, Deputy Executive Director

Committee discussed during section six of CIP.

Adjournment — 1:30 PM

Chairman Joseph adjourned the meeting at approximately 1:30 PM.

Next Meeting — November 14, 2024

Respectfully submitted,

Carmen Borja
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Board of Directors
Fort Monroe Authority
Fort Monroe, Virginia

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, and
each major fund of Fort Monroe Authority as of and for the year ended June 30, 2024, and have issued
our report thereon dated September 19, 2024. We have previously communicated to you information
about our responsibilities under auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America,
Government Auditing Standards, and the Specifications for Auditors of Authorities, Boards and
Commissions, issued by the Auditor of Public Accounts of the Commonwealth of Virginia, as well as
certain information related to the planned scope and timing of our audit in our Statement of Work dated
April 1, 2024. Professional standards also require that we communicate to you the following information
related to our audit.

Significant audit findings or issues
Qualitative aspects of accounting practices
Accounting policies

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant
accounting policies used by Fort Monroe Authority are described in Note two to the financial statements.

No new accounting policies were adopted and the application of existing policies was not changed during
2024.

We noted no transactions entered into by the entity during the year for which there is a lack of authoritative
guidance or consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized in the financial statements in
the proper period.

Accounting estimates

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are
based on management’'s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions
about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance
to the financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ

significantly from those expected. There were no accounting estimates affecting the financial statements
which were particularly sensitive or required substantial judgments by management.

Financial statement disclosures

Certain financial statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their significance to financial
statement users. There were no particularly sensitive financial statement disclosures.

Significant unusual transactions
We identified no significant unusual transactions.

Difficulties encountered in performing the audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our
audit.

-z= CLAglobal.com/disclaimer



Board of Directors
Fort Monroe Authority
Page 2

Uncorrected misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumulate all misstatements identified during the audit, other than
those that are clearly frivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management. The
- attached schedule summarizes uncorrected misstatements of the financial statements. Management has
determined that their effects are immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, to the financial
statements taken as a whole. '

Uncorrected misstatements or the matters underlying uncorrected misstatements could potentially cause
future-period financial statements to be materially misstated, even if management has concluded that the
uncorrected misstatements are immaterial to the financial statements under audit. '

Gorrected mtsstatements

The attached schedule summarizes all misstatements {material and immaterial) detected as a result of
audit procedures that were corrected by management.

Disagreements with management
For purposes of this communication, a disagreement with management is a disagreement on a financial

accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satlsfactlon that could be

significant fo the financial statements or the auditors’ report.

Management representations

We have requested certain representations from m.anagement that are included in the attached
management representation letter dated September 19, 2024,

Management consultations with other independent accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting

maltters, similar to-obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. |f a consultation involves application

of an accounting principle to the entity’s financial statements or a determination of the type of auditors’

opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the consuiting

accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts To our knowledge
~there were-no-such consultations W|th other accountants, - - - _ -

Stgmﬁganussues_dtscussed_mmmaﬂagementpﬂguo_engaaement

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing

- standards, with management each year prior to engagement as the entity’s auditors. However, these
discussions occurred in the normai course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a
condition to our engagement.

Other audit findings or issues

We have provided a separate communication to you dated September 19, 2024, communicating internal
control related matters identified during the audit.

Required supplementary information

With respect to the required supplementary information (RSI) accompanying the fmanCtal statements we
made certain inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the RSI, including whether the
RSI has been measured and presented in accordance with prescribed guidelines, whether the methods



Board of Directors
Fort Montroe Authority
Page 3

of measurement and preparation. have been changed from the prior period and the reasons for any such
changes, and whether there were any significant assumptions or interpretations underlying the
measurement or presentation of the RSI. We compared the RSI for consistency with management's
responses to the foregoing inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge obtained during
the audit of the basic financial statements. Because these limited procedures do not provide sufficient
evidence, we did not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the RSI.

Supplementary information in relation to the financial statements as a whole

With respect to the Schedule of Planning and Development Expenditures- General Fund (collectively,
the supplementary information} accompanying the financial statements, on which we were engaged to
report in relation to the financial statements as a whole, we made certain inquiries of management and
evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparing the information to determine that the information

complies with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, the method of.

preparing it has not changed from the prior period or the reasons for such changes, and the information
is appropriate and complete in relation to our audit of the financial statements. We compared and
reconciled the supplementary information to the underlying accounting records used to prepare the
financial statements or to the financial statements themselves. We have issued our report thereon dated
September 19, 2024,

ok k

This communication is intended solely for the information and.use of the Board of Directors and
management of Fort Monroe Authority and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone
other than these specified parties. '

WKZM% LLZ
CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

 Arlington, Virginia
September 19, 2024
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Board of Directors
Fort Monroe Authority
Fort Monroe, Virginia

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinions

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities and each major fund of the Fort Monroe Authority, a component unit of the
Commonwealth of Virginia, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2024, and the related notes to the
financial statements, which collectively comprise the Fort Monroe Authority’s basic financial statements
as listed in the table of contents.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities and each major
fund of the Fort Monroe Authority, as of June 30, 2024, and the respective changes in financial position,
and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America (GAAS), the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, and the Specifications for Audits of
Authorities, Boards and Commissions (the Specifications), issued by the Auditor of Public Accounts of
the Commonwealth of Virginia. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
required to be independent of the Fort Monroe Authority and to meet our other ethical responsibilities,
in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions
or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Fort Monroe Authority's
ability to continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including
any currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

lobal = CLAglobal.com/disclaimer
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Board of Directors
Fort Monroe Authority

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that
includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance
and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted ‘in accordance with GAAS, Government
Auditing Standards, and the Specifications will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resuiting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal .control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood
that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the Judgment made by a reasonable user
based on the financial statements

In - petforming an audit in accordance with . GAAS Government Auditing Standards and the
Specifications we: :

e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financiai statements, whether due
to fraud or error, and desigh and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures Include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures

- in‘the financial statements.

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of Fort Monroe Authorltys internal. contro[ Accordmgly, ho such
opinion is expressed.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overal| presentation of the
financial statements.

» Conclude whether, in our jud_gment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggrégate,
. that raise substantial doubt about Fort Monroe Authority’s ability to continue as a going concern
for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,

the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audlt findings, and certain internal control related
matters that we identified during the audit.

2)




Board of Directors
Fort Monroe Authority

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America ‘require that the
“management’s discussion and analysis and the schedules relating to pensions and other
postemployment benefits as listed in the table of .contents be presented to supplement the basic
financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and, although not a part of
the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who
considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to
the required supplementary information in accordance with GAAS, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an
opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us
with sufficient evidence to express an 0pin|on or provide any assurance.

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the finanmal statements that
collectively comprise the Fort Monroe Authority's basic financial statements. The Schedule of Plannmg
and Development Expenditures- General Fund is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is
not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records
used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures,

including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves,

and other additional procedures in accordance with GAAS. In our opinion, the Schedule of Planning
and Development Expenditures- General Fund is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the’
basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Requnred by GovernmentAudmng Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
September 19, 2024, on our consideration of the Fort Monroe Authority’s internal control over financial
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grant agreements and other maiters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not
to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Fort Monroe Authority's internal control over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in “accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering Fort Monroe Authority's internal control over financial
reporting and compllance

WM%% L7

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

Arlington, Virginia
September 19, 2024
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- FORT MONROE AUTHORITY
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA)
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - (UNAUDITED)

The management of the Fort Monroe Authority {Authority) offers readers of the Authority's financial
statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the Authority, as of and for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024. We encourage readers to consider the information presented
here in conjunction with the financial statements-and accompanying notes.

Financial Highlights

The Authontys consolidated net position mcreased during the fiscal year by $1.58 million (M).
The increase resulted from a net surplus from governmental activities of $664 thousand (K) and
a net surplus of $925 thousand from business-type activities.

The net operating surplus, prior to transfers, from governmental activities increased versus the
pnor fiscal year by $370.2K. Total General revenues increased by $238.8K compared to the
prior fiscal year, while operating expenses decreased by $131.4K compared to the prior year.

The net operating deficit, prior to transfers, from business-type activities decreased by $1.09M.
Revenues for the fiscal year increased by $97.5K while expenses decreased by $628K
compared to the prior year.

For the fiscal year, the Authority had $15.61M in total revenues compared to $15. 28M in the
prior year. Governmental activities accounted for $7.95M In revenue. The revenues came from
state General Fund appropnatlons ($7.00M), intergovernmental transfers and other grants
($908.8K), and other incoma ($41.4K). Business- -type charges for setvices for the fiscal year,
principally rental income, accounted for $7. 17M in revenue compared to $7.17M in the prior
year. ,

Consolidated operatlng expenses of the Authority for the fiscal year totaled $14. 02IVI compared
to $14.79M in the prior year. Operating expenses before transfers for governmental activities
(reuse and redevelopment planning). were $5.26M compared to $5.39M in the prior year.

Operating expenses before transfers related to business-iype activities (property leasing. and
maintenance, utility operations, and special events) were $8 76M compared to $9.39M in the
prior year.

For fiscal years 2024 and 2023, the Authority’s capital assets were $1.09M and $670.4K, net of
accumulated depreciation, respectively.

As of June 30, 2024 and 2023, the Authorlty had no outstandmg debt

Overview of the Financial Statements

The financial section of this annual report consists of four parts: management’s discussion and
analysis (this section), the basic financial statements, the notes to the financial statements, and
reqwred and other supplementary information.

The Authority’s financial statements presem two types of statements each with a different snapshot of
the Authority’s finances. This focus is on both the Authority as.a whole (government-wide} as well as
on the individual funds. The government-wide financial statements provide both long and short-term
information about the Authority's overall financial status. The fund financial statements (government
and. enterprise) focus on the individual parts of the Authority, reporting the Authority’s operations in
more detail than the government-wide statements. Both perspectives (government—mde and fund)

allow the user to address relevant questions, broaden the basis for comparison (year-to-year or entity-

to-entity), and enhance the Authority's accountability to its public stakeholders.




FORT MONROE AUTHORITY
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA)
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - (UNAUDITED)

Government-Wide Financlal Statements -

The government-wide financial statements report information about the Authority as a whole using
accounting methods similar to those used by private-sector companies. The focus of the Statement of
Net Position is to report the entity's net position and how it may have changed from year to year. Net
position — the difference between assets plus deferred outflows and liabilities plus deferred. inflows —
is one way to measure the Authority’s financial health or financial position. Over time, increases or
decreases in an entity's net position are an indicator of whether its financial health Is improving or
deterloratmg, respectively. '

The Statement of Activities is focused on both the gross and net cost of various functions, which are
supported by program revenues. All the current-year’s revenues and expenses are accounted for in
the Statement of Activities, regardless of when cash is received or paid. This statement summarizes
and simplifies the user’s analysis of the cost of governmental actwltles :

Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Virginia

Established by an Act of the 2010 General Assembly (FMA Act) on July 1, 2010, the Authority
became the successor in interest by law to the Fort Monroe Federal Area Development Authority
(FMFADA}. Building on the work of the FMFADA, the Authority continues to focus on the preservation
of the historic buildings, structures, and viewsheds at Fort Monroe; the education and interpretation of
the history of the property; and the creation of business revenue through adaptive reuse of existing
structures at Fort Monroe to reduce the future financial burden on the Commonwealth of Virginia
(Commonwealth).

The FMA Act (Virginia® Code Section 2.2-2336 et seq.) established the Authonty as-a publlc body
corporate and political subdivision of the Commonwealth to perform essential governmental functions
of the Commonwealth. The FMA; Act establishes the organization of the Board of Trustees of the
Authority and also sets out certain powers and duties of the Authority. The FMA Act allows the
Authority to manage its own financial activities subject to certain provisions, including the requirement
that the accounts of the Authority be audited annually by the Auditor of Public Accounts. Since the
Authority was created to serve as the Commonwealth’s management agent, since the Governor of the
Commonwealth appoints a majority of the Authority’s Board of Trustees, and since the Authority is
largely dependent on General Fund appropriations to meet its obligations, the Authority is determined
to be a component unit of the Commonwealth. The information contained in these audited financial
statements with be discretely presented in the Commonwealth s annial financial reports.

Beginning in fiscal year 2011, the Authortty first engaged in business-type activities, notably the sub-
leasing of 118 apartments and 30 single-family residential units leased from the United States Army
(Army). During fiscal year 2012, the Authority expanded its business-type activities by leasing an
additional 147 residential units and approximately 200,000 square feet of commercial and community
space from the Army. During fiscal year 2013, with the consent of the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers,
the Autherity deconstructed the 118 apartment units after significant damage was caused by
Hurricane Sandy. The Authority continued to lease and manage 177 residential ‘units and lease
commetrcial space ta governmental and pnvate tenants.

Beginning in fiscal year 2013, the Authority was required to present the Fort Monroe Foundatlon asa
blended component unit,

(8)



FORT MONROE AUTHORITY
{A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA)
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - (UNAUDITED)

On June 14, 2013, the Army transferred 312.75+ acres of reversionary property and all improvements
to Commonwealth ownership. A portion of the reversionary property totaling 38.18% acres was not
transferred due to potential environmental hazards covered under the Comprehensive Environmental
Response, Compensation, and Liability Act (CERCLA).

Beginning fiscal year 2014, the Authority took responsibility for the natural gas, water, and sewer
master-metered accounts and began processing utility invoices to third party tenants at Fort Monroe.
As a result, the Fort Monroe utility sub-fund was created as an additional business-type activity.

On August 25, 2015, the Commonwealth donated 121.1+ acres and all the improvementé thereon to
the U.S. Department of the Interior as part of the Fort Monroe National Monument.

On April 14, 2017, the .U.S. Army transferred 73.81% acres and all improvemenis to the Authority
under the terms of the Economic Development Conveyance Agreement (EDC) between the parties
executed on January 10, 2017. The Authority  simultaneously deeded the property fo the
Commonwealth. A portion:of the EDC property totaling 9.37+ acres was not transferred due tfo
potential environmental hazards covered under CERCLA.

During fiscal year 2018, the Fort-Monroe Foundation made changes to its governance and by-laws.
As a result, the Authority is no longer required to report the Fort Monroe Foundation financial
statements as a blended component unit of the Authority. '

During 2018, the Army completed remedial investigations and, in certain cases, remedial actions to
address any environmental concermns governed by CERCLA. After approval of the remedial actions by
the Virginia Department of Environmental Quality, the Army transferred 4.21x acres of reversionary
property and all improvements to the Commonwealth by deed signed on January 24, 2019. On
March 12, 2019, the Army transferred 9.37+ acres of EDC property and all improvements to the Fort
Monroe Authority. On April 15, 2019, the Army transferred 33.97+ acres of reversnonary property and
all improvements to the Commonwealth of Virginia.

On July 15, 2020, the Commonwealth and the Authority executed a Deed of Confirmation 'to transfer
" the 9.37% acre EDC environmental parcel to the Commonwealth and to establish consistency of title in
the name of Commonwealth of Virginia, Fort Monroe Authorlty as provided by § 2.2-1148 of the Code
of Virginia.

On December 9, 2021, the Army transferred 4.97+ acres of reversionary land and improvements to
the Commonwealth. This deed for this parcel transferred responsibility for the long-term ground lease
for the former Chamberiin Hotel to the Commonwealth. '

- As of June 30, 2024, the Commonwealth has received all expected reversionary and non-reversionary
property transfers from the Army. As of this date, the Commonwealth owns 317.89+ acres of land at
Fort Monroe and all the improvements thereon (the buildings and infrastructure) and therein (the
underground utility systems). '

The United States Department of the Interior, acting through the National Park Service, owns 121.1%
acres of property at Fort Monroe. The U.S. Coast Guard retains ownership of the .057-acre parcel on
which the Old Point Comfort Lighthouse is located. The Army retains ownership of 122,29+ acres of
federal surplus land that will be transferred directly to the Department of the Interior as part of the Fort
Monroe National Monument once the environmental remediation process is complete.

(6)




FORT MONROE AUTHORITY
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA)
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS — (UNAUDITED)

Fund Fmanclal Statements

General Fund — The General Fund is used to account for the financial resources approprlated for the
planning and implementation of the reuse plan for the Commonwealth-owned property at Fort
Monroe. The General Fund will also include operating and compliance costs assaciated with the
natural gas, water, sewer, and stormwater infrastructure. The operation of the Casemate Museum and
the Visitor and Education Center are accounted for as part of the General Fund.

Enterprise Fund — The Enterprise Fund is used to account for the flnanclal resources generated from

husiness-type activities.

The 318+ acres at Fort Monroe owned by the Commonwealth include 81 residential buildings
comprising 178 residential units. containing approximately 417.8K square feet and 32
assoclated garage buildings containing ‘approximately 41.9K square feet. The revenue
generated by the leasing of these residential homes to the public on short-term leases and the
associated operating costs is accounted for in the residential leasing sub-fund.

The Commonwealth property at-Fort Monroe includes 132 non-residential buildings and
structures containing approximately 1.47M square feet of commercial and administrative
space. The leasing revenue and operating expenses for these buildings are accounted for in
the commercial leasing sub-fund. :

With the June 2013 transfer of a portion of the Army property to Commonwealth ownership,

“which. included the underground ufility infrasiructure, the Authority took responsibility for .

natural gas, water, and sewer utility systems and accounts. In November 2013, the Authority
began billing third-party users for natural gas, water, and sewer consumption. To track the
utility revenue and costs, the Authority established a utility sub-fund. In April 2021, the electric
utility contract agreement with Dominion Energy was transferred to the Authority. The Authority
reports the billing for electric consumption in the ufility fund as well.

The Authority also provides free and ticketed special event activities and event venue rentals
to public and private parties. These activities are reported in a separate sub-fund of the
Enterprise Fund. ‘ '

These four sub-funds are reported on a consolidated basis in the Enterprise Fund section of these
financial statements. :
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FORT MONROE AUTHORITY
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA)
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - {UNAUDITED)

Financial Analysis of the Authority as a Whole

Net Position: _ _
The following table reflects the condensed net position of the Authority (in thousands):

Table 1 — Net Position
At June 30, 2024 and 2023

Governmental Business-type Government-wide
Activities - - Activities Activities

2024 - 2023 2024 - 2023 2024 - 2023
Current and Other Assets $ 7.318.0 § 45458 § 19,1852 § 16,2460 $ 26,5042 § 20,7918
Capital Assets 843.8 -324.0 _248.2 346.4 1,092.0 670.4
Total Assets 8,162.8 4 8697 19,433.4 16,5924 27,5962 21,482.2
Deferred Quiflows of Resources 524.5 455.8 84.4 3.3 '609.0 529.1
8,687.3 5,325.5 19,517.8 16,665.8 28,205.1 . 21,991.2
Current and Other Liabilities 5,388.1 2,530.4 1,460.9 1,411.7 6,848.0 3,942.1
Total Liabilities 5,388.1 2,530.4 1,460.,9 1,411.7 8,849.0 3,942 1
Deferred Inflows of Resources 357.3 517.1 14,445.8 12,5684 14,803.1 13,085.5
5,745.4 3,047.6 15,906.7 13,980.0 21,6521 17,027 6

Net Position: o ) .
‘Net investment in Capital Assets 837.8 286.5 248.2 346.4 1,088.0 632.9
Restricted 743.3 839.0 15.2 151 758.5 854.1
Unrestricted ' 1,360.8 1,162.4 3,347.8 23242 4,708.6 3,476.6
Total Net Position $ 29419 $ 22779 $ 36111 § 26857 § 65530 $§ 49636

As of June 30, 2024, the Authority had total assets and deferred outflows of resources of $28.20M -
compared to $21.99M as of June 30, 2023. Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources as of
June 30, 2024 were $21.65M compared fo $17.03M at the end of the prior fiscal year. As of June 30,
2024, the Authority’s combinad net position was $6.64M compared to $4.96M as of June 30, 2023,

During the fiscal year, the Authority’s total assets and deferred outflows of resources increased by
$6.21M. Current and other assets, which consist of cash, cash equivalents, restricted cash and
receivables, increased by $5.80M over the prior year. The majority of this category is the lease -
receivable accrual resulting from the implementation of Government Accounting Standards. Board
(GASB) Statement No. 87 Leases (See Note 12} beginning on July 1, 2022, Capital assets, net of
depreciation, which includes tangible assets, capitalized leasing commissions, and construction in
process increased by $421.6K over the prior year. Deferred outflows of resources, which are related
to the Authority's pension and postemployment benefit (OPEB) obligations increased by $79.9K.

During the fiscal year, the Authority’s total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources increased by
$4.62M. For the fiscal year, current and other liabilities increased by $2.91M compared to the prior
fiscal year-end. Deferred inflows of resources, which are related to the Authority’s pension,
postemployment benefit (OPER), and lease liabilities increased by $1.72M. The majority of the
increase in deferred inflows is related to the implementaticn of GASE 87 for lease accounting.

(8)




FORT MONROE AUTHORITY
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA)
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS —~ (UNAUDITED)

Chanqes in Net Position:

The following table reflects revenues and expenses for the current and prior fiscal years (in
thausands):

Table 2 - Changes in Net Position
Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023

Governmental Business-type - Government-wide
Activities Activities Activities
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
- Revenues: :
Prograim Revenue: -
Charges for Services $ - % - § 71692 § 71655 § 71692 § 7,1655
Capital Grants and Contributions 906.8 558.4 - - 906.8 558.4
General Revanues: :
Operating Appropriations 6,099.7 7,124.9 - - 6,998.7 71249
Other Revenues 41.4 259 497 .1 403.2 538.5 429.1
Total Revenues 7,047.9 7,709.1 7,666.3 7,568.8 15614.2 = 15,277.9
Expenses/Transfers: _
Planning and Development 5,261.1 5,392.5 - - 5,261.1 §,392.5
Propeity Admin and Maintenance - - 8,763.7 93921 - 87637 9,392.1
Total Expenses 5,261.1 65,3925 - 8,763.7 9,392.1 14,024.8 14,7846
Change before Transfers 2,686.8 2,316.6 {1,097.4) {1,823.3) 1,580.4 493.3
Transfers {2,022.8) {22,964) 2,022.8 22,064 - -
Change in Net Position - 663.9 {20,647.1) 9254 21,1404 1,580.4 493.3
Net Pasition - Beginning of Year -~ 22778 22,9250 2,685.7 (18,454.7) 4,963.6 44703
Net Paosition - End of Year $ 29418 § 22179 $§ 3B11.1 $ 26857 § 65530 § 49636
Revenues:

Government-wide revenue for the fiscal year fotaled $15.61M compared to $15.28M in the prior fiscal
year. Gavernmental activity revenue for the fiscal year totaled $7.95M compared to $7.71M in the
prior year. The majority of government fund revenues result from state appropriations from the
Commonwealth of Virginia's General Fund. For the year-ended June 30, 2024, General Fund
appropriations were $7.00M compared to $7.12M in the prior fiscal year. Grants and other
governmental transfers for the fiscal year were $906.8K compared to $558.4K for the prior year. Total
other revenues were $41.4K compared to $25.9K in the prior fiscal year.

Business-type activities generated $7.66M in revenues durlng the current fiscal year compared to
$7.57M for the prior fiscal year.
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FORT MONROE AUTHORITY
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA)
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS — (UNAUDITED)

Expenses:

Government-wide expenses for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024 were $14.02M compared to
$14.78M in the prior fiscal year, a decrease of $759K. These expenses represent the costs for the
development of and planning for the implementation of the reuse plan for the 318t acres of
Commonwealth property at Fort Monroe, Virginia (governmental activity) and the costs of operation
for the residential and commercial leasing activities, the utility fund, and special events activities
(business-type activities). For the fiscal year, governmental activity expenses totaled $5.26M, a
decrease of $131.4K over the prior year. Busmess—type activity expenses for the fiscal year totaied
$8.76M, a decrease of $628.4K compared to the prior year.

Financial Analysis of the Authority s Funds

_ For fiscal years 2024 and 2023, the Authority operated two funds — the Governmental Fund and the
Enterprise {Business-type) Fund. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain
accountability and control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or
objectives. The Authority’s Governmental Fund reflects operations of its planning and redevelopment
efforts that are predominantly funded by Virginia appropriations. The Authority’s Enterprise Fund
reflects business-related operations. The fund financial statements provide a more detailed look at the
Authority's most significant activities by focusing on the individuai activities of the major funds.

For fiscal year 2024, Governmental Fund expenditures were $5.92M. This amount includes the cost of
staffing and benefits for the majority of the Authority’s employees, the cost of the public works, site-
wide security, and other consulting contracts, and the costs for the operatlon of the Casemate
Museurn and Fort Monroe Visitor and Education Center.

Enterprise Fund expenses for the fiscal year were $8.56M. These costs include the cost of staffing
and benefits for Authority employees in residential and special events operations; as'well as the costs
for the repair and maintenance, insurance, utility, and payment in lieu of tax expenses for all building
and structures not used by the Authority. The Enterprise Fund expenses include the net operating
costs for electric, natural gas, water, and sewer utility systems. The Enterprise Fund also mcludes
expenses related to the Authority’s event production and venue rentals activities.

State Budget Requests/Funding

In September 2021, the Authority submitted its request for Virginia General Fund support for the
biennial period beginning on July 1, 2022 and ending June 30, 2024 (FY23 and FY24). The original
submittal requested $6,205,598 for operations support for each year in biennial budget. :

The Governor's budget introduced in December 2021 included. the Authority’s request for $6,295,598
in General Fund support for FY23 and FY24 and included $4,062,709 in Maintenance Reserve
funding for each year of the biennium.

During the 2022 General Assembly session, Delegate Cordoza submitted a budget amendment for

$545,349 in the first year and $301,753 in the second year to create a facilities maintenance
department for the Authority.
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FORT MONROE AUTHORITY
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA)
MANAGEMENT S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS ~ (UNAUDITED)

The enrolled FY23-24 biennial budget signed by the Governor after the 2022 Special Session
included a General Fund support of $6,840,947 for FY23 and $6,597,351 for FY24. The enrolled
budget included $4,062,709 in Maintenance Reserve allocations for FY23 and $3,391,440 for FY24.
The budget also included an allocation of $6M from the State and Local Fiscal Recovery Fund “for
construction of a permanent monument to commemorate the 400-year annlversary of the First
Landlng of Afncans at Point Comfort in Fort Monroe.” :

In September 2022, the Authority submitted budget amerndment requests for FY23-24 for additional
funds to increase  the marketing program ($0/$211K), to hire a Director of Development
($150K/$150K), to increase security patrols ($90K/362K), install security cameras to assist law
enforcement ($480K/$30K), and fund a visitor experience enhancement project ($100K/$0K). The
Authority also submitted capltal project funding requests to renovate 5 historic buildings (B14, B15,
B19, B62, and B63) in the inner fortress area totaling $7.04M. and for V|rg|n|a General Fund support
for FY24 - : : ,

The Governor's budget introduced in December 2022 included. the Authority’s request for $211K'in
additional marketing funding for FY24 resulting in $6,840,947 for FY23 and $6,808,351 for FY24.
6,295,598 in" General Fund support for FY23 and FY24 and included $4,062,709 in Maintenance
Reserve funding for each year of the biennium. There was no additional maintenance reserve fundlng
or any capital project funding for the 5 buildings. _

During the 2022 General Assembly session, Senator Locke and Delegate Cordoza submitted budget
amendments for the 4 funding requests that were not included in the Governor's budget and the
$7.04M in capital project funding. :

The amended enrolled biennial budget signed by the Governor after the 2023 Special Session did not
include any additional -General Fund support leaving the state appropriations as the previously
approved level of $6,840,947 for FY23 and $6,597,351 for FY24. The amended budget did include
$7,039,000 to rehabilitate the 5 historic buildings. The enrolled budget included $4,062,709 in
Maintenance Reserve allocations for FY23 and $4,088,693 for FY24. The enrolled budget also
included language that authorized the Authority to use its Maintenance Reserve allocation for the
$100K visitor experience enhancement project and $450K to make security upgrades.

In September 2023, the Authority submitted budget amendment requests for FY24 for additional funds
to compensate for the increase in utility costs ($0/$358K), increased funding for the African Landing
Memorial ($0/$2.5M), to compensation for the increased costs for the public works contract
- ($0/$279K), to fund critical tree maintenance ($0/$93K)}, and to address salary compression
($0/$6200K). ' >

The Governor's budget introduced ih December 2023 included the Authority’s request for the
additional funding for the African Landing Memorial. There were no other changes to the FMA’
funding support.

The amended enrolted “biennial budget signed by the Governor after the 2024 Special Session
included General Fund of $6,840,947 for FY23 and $9,097,351 for FY24. The amended budget
included $7,039,000 to rehabilitate 5 historic buildings. The enrolled budget included $4,062,709 in
Maintenance Reserve allocations for FY23 and $4,088,693 for FY24.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - (UNAUDITED)

Opera'ting Budget Overview

.The Authority staff submits an annual budget proposal for both the General Fund and the four sub-
funds of the Enterptise Fund fo the Finance Committee at its meeting in June for review and
recommendation for adoption by the Board of Trustees. At its meeting on June 8, 2023, the Finance
Committee reviewed the FY24 operating budget and recommended it to the Board of Trustees for
adoption. At its meeting on June 15, 2023, the Authority Board of Trustees adopted the FY24 budget
recommended by thé Finance Committee. The Authority submitted its FY24. annual budget to the
Senate Finance and Appropriations Committee, House Appropriations Committee, and Department of
Planning and Budget as required by the Fort Monroe Authority Act.

For FY2_4_, the General Fund ‘reéflected $8.25M in revenues. State appropriations in the approved
budget of $6.60M and supplemental state funding for budgeted salary increases and other state
charges were estimated at $370.1K for FY24. Budgeted revenues also included $410.4K from the City
of Hampton for road maintenance and funding from retained eamnings of $428K to balance the
projected deficit in the budget.

The FY24 General Fund budget reflected expenses of $6.69M. The largest components of the
General Fund expenses were $3.0M for salary, wages, and fringe benefits costs for 30 full-time
employee’s and 4 part~time employees and the $1.6M contract amount for the public works confractor, .

The General Fund was projected to generate a FY24 operating surplus of $1.58M before transfer
payments to the Enterprise Fund.

For FY24, the consolidated Enterprise Fund budget reflected $7.33M in business income. Residential

rental activity was projected at $3.51M. Commercial rental activity was estimated to earn $1.67M in

rent and fees, Venue rentals and ticketed events were budgeted to generate $95K in income. Utility
billings to internal and external customers were expected to generate $2.06M. :

The consolidated FY24 Enterprise Fund expenses were budgeted to be $8.92M. Residential
operating expense budgets totaled $2.39M, resulting in a budget net surplus of $1.11M for the fiscal
year. Commercial rental expenses were projected to be $3.11M for the fiscal year, resulting in a net
operating deficit of $1.50M. Venue rental and event expenses were estimated to be $121K, resulting
in a projected net operating deficit of $26.5K. Utility expenses which are primarily payments to the
local and regional utility companies were estimated to be $3.04M for the year, resulting in a net
operating deficit for the utility sub-fund of $978.2K for the year. On a consolidated basis, the
Enterprise Fund projected net operating deficit of $1.58M resultlng in the need for the $1.58M in
transfer payments from the General Fund. .
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(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA)
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS — (UNAUDITED)

Capital Assets and Debt Administration

Capital Assets:

As of June 30 2024, the Authorlty had invested $1.09M in net capital assets as reflected in Table 3
. (reflected in thousands) This amount includes $59.7K in non-depreciable donations, $631.5K for
construction in process (primarily for the African Landing Memorial), $482.1K in capitalized leasing
commissions and tenant improvements (which are amortized over the term of the related leases),
$204.8K in depreciable assets, and $286.2K in accumulated depreciation and amortization. For
comparison, as of June 30, 2023, the Authority had net capital assets of $670.4K. This amount
included $59.7K in non-depreciable’ donations, $180.3K for construction in process, $529.7K in
capitalized leasing commissions and tenant improvements, $329.5K in depreciable assets, and
- $428.8K in accumulated depreciation and amortization. The Authority depreciates or amortizes assets
based on straight-line methodology over the useful life of the asset. :

Capital Assets and Debt Administration:

Table 3 - Capital Assets
At June 30, 2023 and 2022

Governmental Business-type Government-wide
Activities Activities Activities

. 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
Donated Artifacts for Museum $. 597 % 50.7 § - $ - 5 507 &  B9.7
Construction in Process 631.5 180.3 - o o- 631.5 180.3
Leasing Commissions - - - 4735 434.2 A73.5 434.2
Tenant Improvements - - 88 . 955 3.6 . 855
Motor Vehicle Equipment 87.8 108.0 21 38,7 96,9 143.7
Furniture and Equipment ' ‘ 107.8 - 1697 - ' 16.1 : 107.9 185.8
Accumulated Depreciation {43.2) {193.8) (243.0) {235.1) {286.2) (428 8)
Total Capital Assets, net $ 8438 $ 3240 § 2482 § 3464 $ 1,0020 § 6704

Short- and Long-Term Debt:
As of June 30, 2024 and 2023, the Authority has no outstanding debt.

Eco_noMic Factors and Next Year's Budget

During the redevelopment process, the Authority. will be dependent on Virginia appropriations to
bridge the gap between revenue received from business activities and the cost to maintain the
property including the large inventory of vacant commercial buiidings. The current state of the federal
and state economy may impact state revenues which, in turn, may limit the level of Virginia General
Fund support available to the Authority.

As of June 30, 2024, the Authority had 178 residential units, 170 of which are in leasable condition.
The Authority has been successful in' maintaining its residential occupancy over the last several years
between 95% to 98%. However, without adequate funds to-address deferred maintenance repairs to
the properties, the Authority may not be able to adequately maintain the condition of the residential
homes to continue this level of occupancy.
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The Authority -currently has eight residential units that need significant repairs before the units are
suitable for leasing. The Authority received additional funding in the FY24 state budget to make
repairs to these units. However, even with the eight additional units, the residential inventory will Iimat
the Authority’s ability to generate additional residential leasing revenue.

Reswientlal unit rents at Fort Monroe are susceptible to rental rates and available inventory in the
surrounding communities. If the available inventory of leasable homes rémains constrained, it may
result in higher rental rates due to the limited supply. However, if new residential inventory of
comparable quality becomes available in the local market, it may put downward pressure on leasing
rates which may result in lower residential revenue for the Authority. The new multi-family apartment
complex (Monroe Gates) constructed in Phoebus has added a supply of new residential units in the
local area. Additional multi-family ‘developments are being considered for the Phosbus area. An
increase in the adjacent residential rental inventory may impact the occupancy and rental rates at Fort
Monroe.

The Authority, working with its commercial leasing and maintenance contractor, Old Point Comfort
Real Estate Services, continues to pursue new tenants for approximately 803K square feet of vacant
office, retail, and industrial space. Most of the vacant space is not fully ADA-accessible due to the lack
of elevators. In addition, many of the buildings are subject to historic preservation standards that may
limit the ability to reconfigure buildings to suit prospective tenant uses. While the Authority has been
successful in leasing commercial buildings to state and local government and private tenants, most of
the leasing has occurred in non-historic buildings. The preservation requirements and high cost of
historic adaptive reuse have constralned the FMA’S ability to recruit tenants for the historic
commermal propertles - :

As of June 30, 2024, the Authorlty manages approximately 1.49M square feet of office, retail, and
industrial space on Fort Monroe, Of that inventory, approximately 513.4K is leased to tenants, another
46.8K is licensed to private entities, and another 159.2K is reserved for the Authority’s use. That
reflects a 48.4% occupancy for commercial buildings. The annual operating deficit for the commercial
enterprise fund will continue to require significant General Fund support unless and until private
developers invest in long-term lease fransactions. Additionally, the lingering-impact of the pandemic
on remote and hybrid work arrangements may continue to have a detrimental effect on business
revenues for existing commercial tenants resuiting in a reduction in or loss of occupied commercial
space, while also limiting the potential for new commercial lease transactians.
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In response to the continued weakness in commercial leasing for the historic inventory, the Authority
issued a Request for Qualifications and Statement of Interest (RFQSOI) in June 2018 to solicit input
from private entities to propose future reuse alternatives for approximately 900K square feet of office,
retail, and industrial space. Upon the completion of the Army.transfers in Aprit 2019, the Authority
issued a Request for Real Estate Proposals (RFREP) to those companies pre-qualified from the
RFQSOI process. At the November 2019 meeting of the Board of Trustees, the Board agreed with the
Executive Director's recommendation that four of the respondents offered proposals that reflected
sufficient experience with historic redevelopment, a thorough understanding of the Authority’s
governing documents, and consideration of the redevelopment on the visitor experience. At the
February 2020 meeting of the Board, the Board concurred with the Executive Director's
recommendation to negotiate with two respondents for long-term leases. The Authonty successfully
negotiated and executed a long-term ground lease with one of the respondents in May 2021, but
terminated the negotiations with the other respondent due to the inability to develop business terms
agreeable to both parties. During the contingency period of the executed ground lease, the lessee
must raise debt and equity sufficient to complete the project. The availability and financing rate for
debt and the availability of public or private equity has been adversely impacted by national and
international financial policies beyond the control of the Authority and the ground lease developer,
resulting in the developer being unable to finance the development. In December 2023, the FMA
notified the ground lease developer that it would be . terminating the ground lease for failure to
complete the contingency requirements within the times established in the ground lease.

In November 2021, the Authority issued another RFREP for four development sites containing thirteen
historic buildings and one non-historic -building totaling approximately 300K square feet. After a
therough due diligence process in May 2022, the Authority executed a single due diligence letter with
a developer for all four development sites. In June 2022, the Authority negotiated non-binding term
sheets with the development for all four sites. In February 2023, the Authority signed long-term lease
documents for the first two of the four sites and option agreements for the other two sites. During the
contingency period of the-leases, the lessee must raise debt and equity sufficient to complete the
project. The availability and financing rate for debt and the availability of public or private equity may
be adversely impacted by natienal and international financial policies beyond the control of the
Authority.

The adaptive reuse of the large inventory of historic structures by private investors may be eligible for
federal and state historic rehabilitation tax credits. However, recent federal tax reform has removed or
reduced the benefit of the federal historic tax credits. Additionally, in recent years there have been
several hills in the Virginia General Assembly to reduce or eliminate the state historic tax credits. Any
significant change to either tax credit program may severely affect the Authority’s ability to market the
buildings for adaptive reuse by private investors. .

Portions of the utility infrastructure at Fort Monroe may date back to as early as the 1890s. While the
Authority entered a contract with a public works operator, the cost to maintain the utility infrastructure
will continue to increase as the infrastructure continues to age. The Authority submitted a capital
request for $32M for infrastructure improvements during the FY19 General Assembly session. No
funding was allocated. In preparation for the FY20 General Assembly session, the Authority submitted
a $27M capital funding request. The $17.8M in additional capital funding in the FY21-22 budget will
“allow the Authority to continue with the current projects in the capital improvement plan (CIP). The
FMA will need additional capital funding from the Commonwealth to upgrade the utility systems.
Without additional capital support from the General Assembly, the Authority will not be able to deliver
adequate utility service for the adaptive reuse of existing buildings or to support the limited new
construction that may be allowed at Fort Monroe.
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Most of the property at Fort Monroe lies within the 100-year floodplain. New federal legislation or
regulations, state legislation or regulations, or executive actions concerning development within the
floodplain may impact the ability for the Authority or private entities to receive approval for
construction projects. Executive Order 45 was introduced in November 2019 and contains new
floodplain management requirements for construction on state-owned property within the floodplain.
This Executive Order and any future executive orders, legislation, or regulations concerning sea level
rise may impact the Authority’s ability to recruit private investment to adaptively reuse vacant buildings
at Fort Monroe.

The ongoing inflationary impact of the pandemic has significantly increased the operating costs of
several business activities. The continuing labor and supply chain shortages have resulted in salary,
contractor, and utility costs increases, which have directly impacted the net operating surplus
generated from residential leasing and increased the net operating deficits in commercial leasing and
utility operations. Continuing cost increases may require additional state appropriations to cover the
increased net deficit from business-type activities. If additional state appropriations are not obtained,
the Authority may have to curtail operations and defer maintenance of historic and non-historic
buildings.

Contacting the Authority’s Financial Management

This financial report is designed to provide users (citizens, taxpayers, customers, clients, investors,
and creditors) with a general overview of the Authority’s finances and to demonstrate the Authority’s
accountability for the funds it receives.

Questions concerning this report or requests for additional information should be directed to Deputy
Executive Director, Fort Monroe Authority, 20 Ingalls Road, Fort Monroe, Virginia, 23651, telephone
757-637-7778, or visit the Authority’s website at www.fortmonroe.org.
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FORT MONROE AUTHORITY
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA)}
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2024

Total
Governmental Business-Type Primary
Aotivities * Actlvitles Government
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 3,606,258 % 2,718,803 [ 8,225,01
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents 3,344,980 317,626 3,662,861
Grants and Other Recelvables, net . 334,092 660,702 998,7!
Prepald Expenses 35,042 181,092 216,10 |
Lease Receivable - 15,291,836 15,291,8
Net OPEB Asset, VSDP 94,585 15,173 109,71
Capital Assets: ‘
Nondepreciable Capital Asseis 691,212 - 691,2
Depreciable Capital Assets, Net 182,577 248,168 400,7:
Total Assets 8,162,756 19,433,399 27,696,1!
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES ' : !
Deferred Pension Amounts 432,343 69,643 501,90 |
Other Postemployment Benefit Deferrals: . :
Deferred VSDP OPEB Amounts 23,748 3,809 27.5¢ :
Defarred DHRM OPEB Amounts 6,412 2,632 19,0 :
Deferred GLIP OPEB Amounts . 22,984 ' 3.687 26,6
Deferred HICP OPEB Amounts 29,039 4,668 33,6!
Total Deferred Outflows of Rasources 524,626 84,429 608,9:
Total Assets and Dseferred Outflows
of Resources % 8,687,282 $ 19,517,828 $ 28,205,1"
LIABILITIES ) :
Accounts Payable and Accrued Expensas $ 701,806 $ 721,618 5 1,423,5' .
Accrued Salaries ' 20,967 4,376 253
Accrued Payroll Tax and Banefits 56,384 - 56,31
Unearned Revenues 2,696,248 79,924 2,776,1
Deposits Payable - 352,192 ’ 352,1¢
Noncurrent Liabilities: ‘
Due Within One Year: .
Accrued Annual Leave -116,25¢ 14,659 130,91
Due ih More than One Year: ]
MNet Panslon Llability 1,487,771 240,236 1,738,010
Net OPEB Liabllity, DHRM : 68,583 11,000 79,5
Net OPEB Liability, GLIP 78,032 12,516 20,6+
Net OPER Liability, HICP 151,948 24,372 176,3:
Total Liabilittes 5,388,079 1,460,893 . 6,848,9°
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES - .
Deferred Pension Amounts 206,863 . 33,180 240,0:
Deafarrad Inflows - Leases - 14,388,475 14,388,4
Other Postemployment Benefit Deferrals: :
Deferrad VSDF OPEB Amounts . 20,016 3,210 23,2
Deferrad DHRM OPEBR Amounts 94,125 15,097 109,20
Deferred GLIP OPEB Amounts . 16,698 2,678 19,3 |
Deferred HICP OPEB Amounts 19,628 3,148 22,7
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 357,330 14,445,782 14,803,1"
NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets 837,792 248,168 1,085,91
Restricted for Homeless Support Services . 839,442 - 639,44
Restrictad for Other Postemployment Benefits 94,595 16,173 109,71
Restricted for Employes Banefits 9,290 - 9,2
Unrestricted 1,360,754 3,347,806 4,708,5!
Total Net Position 2,841,873 - 3,611,146 6,563,0'
Total Liabflities, Deferred Inflows of . .
Resources, and Net Posltlon $ 8,687,282 3 198,517,828 $ 28,2051

See accompanying Noles fo Basic Financial Statements.
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FORT MONROE AUTHORITY
- {A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA)
"~ BALANCE SHEET
GENERAL FUND
JUNE 30, 2024

ASSETS .

- Cash and Cash Equivalents
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents
Grants and Other Receivables
Prepaid Expenditures

Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable
Accrued Salaries
Accrued Payroll Tax and Benefits
Unearned Revenue
Total Liabilities

FUND BALANCE
Nonspendable
Restricted
Unassigned

Total Fund Balance

" Total Liabilities and Fund Balance

See accompanying Nofes to Basic Financial Stafements.
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General

$ 3,506,258
3,344,980
338,002
35,042

$ 7,224,372

$ . 701,896
20,967

56,384
2,696,248

3,475,495

35,042
648,732
3,065,103

3,748,877

'$ 7.224.372




FORT MONROE AUTHORITY : .
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA)

-RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET OF THE GENERAL FUND

. TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2024

-Amounts reported in the Statement of Net Position differ from fund amounis as follows:

Fund Balance - General Fund

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and,

therefore, are not reported in governmental funds.

" The net pension liability is not due and payable in the current period and,
therefora, is not reported as a liability in governmental funds.

The net OPEB asset is not a current financial resource and, therefare, is not

reported as an asset in governmental funds.

The net OP'EB liability is not due and payable in the current period and,
therefore, is not reported as a liability in governmental funds.

Deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to the net pension liability

are not recognized in governmental funds.

Deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to the net OPEB liability

are not recognized in governmental funds.

Annual leave is not due and payable in the current period and, therefore,

is not reported in governmental funds.

Net Position of Governmental Activities

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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3.748.877
843,789

{1 ,49?,7?1 )
94,595
(298,563)
225,480
{58,284}

" (116,250)
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FORT MONROE AUTHORITY
(A COMPONENT . UNIT OF THE COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA) :
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GENERAL FUND
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

: General
REVENUES
[ntergovernmental Revanues: :
State ) $ 7,806,499
Other : 36,333
Interest _ : ' 5,071
Total Revenues ' 7,947,903
EXPENDITURES
Current Expenditures:
Planning and Development _ ' 4,600,005
Capital Outlay : 1,318,685
_ Total Expenditures 5,918,690
EXCESS OF REVENUES GVER EXPENDITURES ' | , 2,029,213
OTHER FINANCING USES
Transfers Qut . (2,022,827)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANGE 6,386
Fund Balance - Beginning of Year 3,742,491
FUND BALANCE -END OF YEAR $ 3,748,877

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Stafements.
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FORT MONROE AUTHORITY '

: (A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA) :
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE OF GENERAL FUND TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Amounts reported in the Statement of Activities differ from fund amounts as follows:

Net Change in Fund Balance - General FIJnd | $ 6,386

Govemmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
Statement of Activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their
estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the
amount by which capital outlays exceeds depreciation expense.

Capital Outlays - : 548,712

Depreciation Expense {28,908)
: 519,804

Some expenses réported in the Statement of Activities do not require the use
of current resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in
_governmental funds.

 Accrued Annual Leave ' (23,978)

Pension _ ' 106,213
OPEB : : - 55,522
137,757

Change in Net Position _ : - $ 663,947

See accompanying Nofes to Basic Financial Statements. -
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FORT MONROE AUTHORITY
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA)
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
ENTERPRISE FUND
JUNE 30, 2024

ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents , Securlty Deposﬂs
Accounts Receivables, net
Leasse Receivable, Current Poriion
Prepaid Expenses
Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assets:
Net OPEB assef, VSDP
Lease Receivable, Net of Current Portion
Deapreclable Caplital Assets, Net
Total Noncurrent Assels
Total Assets

DEFERRED QUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Pansion Amounts
Deferred VSDP OPEB Amounts
Deferred DHRM OPEB Amounts
Deferred GLIP OPEB Amounts
Déferréd HICP OPEB Amounts
Total Deferred Qutflows of Resources

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses
Accrued Salaties
Accruad Annual Leave, Current Portion
Unearned Revenues
Deposits Payable
Total Current Liabilities

Noneurrent Liabllities:
MNet Pension Liability .
Net OPEB Liability, DHRM
Net OPEB Liability, GLIP
Net OPEB Liability, HICP
Total Noncurrent Liabilities
Total Liabilities

.DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Inflows - Leases
Deferred Pension Amounts’
Deferred VSDP OPEB Amounts
Deferred DHRM OPEB Amounts
Deferred GLIP OPEB Amounts
Deferred HICP OPER Amounis
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources

MET POSITION
Net Investment In Capital Assets
- Restricted for Cther Postemployment Benefits
Unrestricted
Total Net Position

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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$

2,718,803
317,626
860,702
056,833
181,092

4,834,056

16,173
14,336,002
248,168

14,689,343

19,433,30¢ 399

69,643
3,809
2,632
3,687
4,658

84,420

721,818
4,376
14,659
79,924
352,192
1,172,769

240,236
11,000
12,516
24,372

288,124
1,460,893

14,388,475
33,180
3,210
15,097
2,678
3,149

' 14 445,780

248,168
15,173
3,347,805

3,611,146




FORT MONROE AUTHORITY
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA)
STATEMENT OF-REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND - - - e
CHANGES IN NET POSITION — ENTERPRISE FUND
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for Services: :
Rental Income and Other Tenant Charges ‘ : $ 5.315,191
Utility Income 1,853,969
Total Operating Revenues _ ) ‘ : 7.169,160
OPERATING EXPENSES
Facilities Maintenance and Opearation 8,178,494
General and Administrative ' . ' . 439,057
. Depreciation ‘ , 50,674
Total Operating Expenses ' - 8,668,125
- OPERATING LOSS ' . {1,498,965)
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) |
Loss on Disposal of Assets {95,5631)
Interest Income o 497,094
Total Nonoperating Revenue o _ 401,563
LOSS BEFORE TRANSFERS o (1,097,402)
TRANSFERS IN . . 2,022,827
CHANGE IN NET POSITION ' 925,425
Net Position - Beginning of Year : ' : 2,685,721
NET POSITION - END OF YEAR ‘ ' $ 3611146

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financlal Statements.
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7 FORT MONROE AUTHORITY
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA)
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS — ENTERPRISE FUND
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash Received from Tenants _ | $ 6,656,606
Cash Paid to Empioyees (28,592}
Cash Payments to Suppliers for Goods and Services (8,658,545)
Net Cash Used by Operating Activities ‘ (2,031,441)
CASH FLLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Cash Received from Interfund Borrowing 2,022,827
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING
. ACTWVITIES '
Purchase of Capital Assets 7 (47,863)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES .
Interest Income 7 547,421
~ Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities . A 547,421
NET INCREASE IN CASH _ _ | 490,944
Cash and Cash Equivalents- Beginning of Year 2,545,485

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - END OF YEAR $ 3036429

© See accompanying Notes fo Basic Financial Statements.
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FORT MONROE AUTHORITY
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA).
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS — ENTERPRISE FUND {(CONTINUED}
' YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING LOSS TO NET CASH
USED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Operating L.oss $ (1,498,965)
Adjustments to Recencile Operatlng L oss to Net Cash . '
Used by Operating Activities: :
Depreciation : . B0,574
Changes in Assets, Deferred Qutflows of Resources, Llab|I|t|es
and Deferred Inflows of Resources: -
Accounts Receivable (144,506)
Prepaid Expenses (167,030)
Net OPEB Asset . (82)
Lease Receivable {2,186,984)
Deferred Outflows of Resources Related to Pension and OPEB (11,093)
Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses - 125,036
Accrued Salaries - (3,990)
Accrued Annual Leave . 1,402
Unearned Revenues (54,971)
Deposits Payable (29,055)
Net Pension Liability 13,459
Net QPEB Liability (2,655)
Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pension and OPEB (25,633)
Deferred Inflows of Resources - Leases 1,903,052
Total Adjustments (632,4786)
Net Cash Used by Operating Activities $ (2.031441)
RECONCILATION OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS TO
THE THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
Cash And Cash Equivalents $ 2,718,803
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents 317,626
" Total $ 3035429

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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NOTE 1

NOTE 2

FORT MONROE AUTHORITY
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA)
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2024

NATURE AND PURPOSE OF ORGANIZA’I"ION‘

The Fort Menroe Authority {the Authority) is a political subdivision of the Commonwealth of
Virginia (the Commonwaealth), created by legislative action of the Virginia General Assembly
in 2010 to preserve, protect, and manage Fort Monroe and Old Point Comfort after the
federal Base Realignment and Closure Commission (BRAC) closure in September 2011. It
is a separate and distinct legal entity that is governed by a 14-member Board of Trustees
(the Board). The Board includes 12 voting members comprised of 2 members of the General
Assembly, 2 appointees selected by the City of Hampton, Virginia (the City) and
8 appointees selected by the Governor of Virginia, as well as 2 nonvoting ex officio
members of the Governor's Cabinet.

The Authority is considered a component unit of the Commonwealth, as its Board is
primarily appointed by the Commonwealth and, as such, the Authority is included as a
discretely presented component unit in the basic financial statements of the Commonwealth.

The Authority has been funded primarily through intergovernmental revenues provided by
the Commonwealth and the Federal Office of Economic Adjustment. In August 2010,
through leases with the United States Army (the Army), the Authority began subleasing
residential and commercial properties on Fort Monroe for business-type revenues.

On June 14, 2013, when the Governor of Virginia signed a Quitclaim Deed transferring
ownership of ‘a 312.75-acre parcel of the Fort Monroe property from the Army to the
Commonwealth, the Authority has been responsible for the operations of the utilities,
maintenance, and security of the property while the Army and the Authority complete the
conveyance process of the remainder of the 565-acte Fort Monroe property to the
Commonwealth and National Park Service. As of June 30, 2023, the Army retains
ownership of 122.29% acres of federal surplus land that will be transferred directly to the
Department of the Interior as part of the Fort Monroe National Monument.

Fort Monroe Foundation is a private, 501¢3 éntity established in 2011, The mission of the
Foundation is to promote and sustain Fort Monroe, its programs and pariners, through
fundraising and stewardship of financial resources. The Authority is not financially
accountable for the Fort Monroe Foundation and is not responsible for appointing board
members and therefore are excluded from these financial statements.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES®

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The basic financial statements include both government-wide (based upon the Authority as
a whole) and fund financial statements. These statements distinguish between the
governmental and business- type activities of the Authority. For 2024, the Authority had two
funds:

(28)




FORT MONROE AUTHORITY
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA)
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2024

NOTE2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements (Continued)
General Fund: : '

The General Fund is the primary operating fund of the Authority. It accounts for the
Authority’s financial resources from state and federal funding. In general, the General
Fund is used to account for all financial resources except those required to be accounted
far in another fund.

Enterprise Fund:

The Enterprise Fund accounts for the Authority’s financial resources generated from
teasing residential and commercial rental properties; billing the tenants, both commercial
and residential, for electricity, natural gas, water, and sewer; providing free and ticketed
special event activities and event space rentals to public and private parties; and leasing
marina slips.

The government-wide statement of net position reports all financial and capital resources of
the Authority’s governmental and business-type activities. It is presented in a net position
format (assets plus deferred outflows less liabilities and deferred inflows equal net position)
and shown with three components: net investment in capital assets, restricted net position,
and unrestricted net position. :

Activity between funds that are representative of tending/borrowing arrangements are -
referred to as “internal balances” and represent the amount outstanding at the end of the
fiscal year between governmental and business-type activities.

The government-wide statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct
expenses of a function are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are
clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. The program. revenues must be
directly associated with the function.

Program revenues include: 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, usée, or
directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment;
and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital
requirements of a particular function or segment. Revenues that are not classified as
program revenues are presented as general revenues.

Separate fund financial statements are provided for the General Fund and the Enterprise
Fund activiies and report additional and detailed information about the Authority's
operations. A reconciliation is provided that converts the results of the governmental fund
accounting to the government-wide presentation.

Basis of Accountin

The government-wide and Enterprise Fund financial statements are reported using the
economic resources meastrement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are
recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of
the timing of related cash flows.

(29)



NOTE 2

FORT MONROE AUTHORITY
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA)
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2024

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Basis of Accounting (Continued)

General Fund financial statements are accounted for using the modified accrual basis of
accounting. Revenues are recognized when they become measurable and available as net
current assets. "Measurable” means the amount of the transaction can be determined and
“available” means collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay
liabilities of the current period. The Authority considers all revenues available if collected
within 60 days after year -end. Expenditures are recognized when the related fund liability is
incurred,

Enterprise Fund distinguishes between operating revenues and expenses and nonoperating
- items., Operating revenues result from providing residential housing and commercial space

for rent as well as charges for utility and special events. Operating expenses for these
operations include all- costs related to providing the service - facilities. maintenance and
operation, general and administrative (salaries and benefits, telecommunications, supplies,
postage, insurance), utility costs, and depreciation. All revenues and expenses not meetmg
this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

In both funds, when both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for a particular
use, it is the Authority’s policy to use restricted resources first.

"The Authority adopts an annual budget for the General and Enterprise Fund. The budget

has been prepared on a basis consistent with the modified accrual basis of accounting and
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (U.S. GAAP). A
budgetary comparison schedule has been provided in the required supplementaty
information to demonstrate compliance with the budget.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Authority has defined cash and cash equivalents to mclude cash on hand, security
deposits, and certificates of deposit, with an original maturity of three months or less.

Restricted Cash

Cash whose use is res,tricted for security deposits, flex spending accounts, and the
homeless trust fund account for .the benefit of homeless persons is segregated on the
statement of net position. :

Prepaid ExpenditureS-IExpenses

Certain payments to vendors represent applicable to future periods and are recorded as
prepaid items in the basic financial statements.

Cagltal Assets

- The Authority defines capital assets as assetls wnth an initial, individual cost of $5,000 or

more and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. Such assets are recorded at

" historical cost in the government-wide and Enterprise Fund financial statements Donated

assets are recorded at acquisition value.
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FORT MONROE' AUTHORITY

 NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2024

NOTE2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Capital Assets (Contmueg)_

Capital assets are deprecnated using the straight- Ilne method over the estlmated lives as
follows: : _

Motor Vehicle Equipment - 5 Yeai‘s
Furniture and Equipment. : 510 7 Years

The Commeonwealth, not the Authority, owns the Fort Monroe property; however, the
Authority, in the course of its operations and management, is responsible for the upkeep
and improvement of the property. At the advisement of the Commonwealth, all equipment
acquisitions with an individual or aggregate cost of $50,000 and all land, building, and
infrastructure “acquisitions with an individual cost of $100,000 will be transferred to the
Commonwealth as capital assets. All acquisitions not meeting these thresholds will be
expensed on the Authority’s books. Construction in process represents assets under
construction expected to meet the transfer threshold.

Leases

A lease receivable and an offsetting deferred inflow of resources was recognized for the
present value of the lease payments expected to be received during the lease term. Interest
income is recognized on the lease receivable at the Authority’s incremental borrowing rate
ranging from of 3.25% to 8 50%.

Accounts receivable are recorded net of estimated uncollectible amounts; which was
$104,516 as of June 30, 2024.

Deposits Payable
Deposits payable consist of up-front rent deposits received for commercial and remdentlal
leases as well as deposits received for special events.

Accrued Annual Leave

Employees accrue leave each pay period based on years of service. Unused accrued leave
is paid to employees upon resignation, retirement, permanent disability, or other termination
of employment, provided the employee has. supplied proper and timely notice of such action
and employee has more than six months service. The Authority has established maximums
for annual carryforward balances and for maximum payment of unused leave, based on
years of service. The current portion of accrued leave is based on historical annual leave
used.

Pension and Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB)

For purposes of measuring all financial statement elements related to pension and OPEB
plans, information about the fiduciary net position of the Authority’s plans and the additions
tofdeductions from the Authority’s plans net fiduciary net position have been determined on
the same basis as they were reported by the Virginia Retirement System (VRS or the
System} and the Department of Human Resource Management (DHRM). For this purpose,
benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due
and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.
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FORT MONROE AUTHORITY
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA)
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2024

NOTE2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED}

Deferred Qutflows and Inflows of Résourc_eg._

Deferred  outflows of resources represent a consumption of net assets that applies to a
“future period, and so it will not be recognized as an expense until then. The Authority’s
deferred outflows of resources related to' pensions and OPEB consist of the difference
between expected and actual experience, changes of assumptions, changes in propottion
and differences between employer contributions and proportionate share of contributions,
and employer contributions subsequent to the measurement date.

Deferred inflows of resources represent an-acquisition of net assets that applies to a future
period and so it will not be recognized as revenue until then. The Authority’s deferred inflows
of resources related to pensions and OPEB consist of the difference between expected and
actual experience, changes of assumptions, the net difference between projected and actual
earnings on plan investments, and changes in proportion and differences between employer
contributions and proportionate share of contributions. The deferred inflows from leases are
recognized as lease revenue by using straight-line amortization over the life of the lease.

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions and OPEB resulting
from the Authority's contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized
as a reduction of the liability the following year. Other amounts reported as deferred inflows
and deferred outflows of resources will be amortized according to the actuarial amortization
calculation. See Notes 9, 10, and 11 for further details. '

Unearned Revenues

Unearned revenues consist of prepayments for fees charged by the Enterprise fund and
prepayments for reimbursement-based grants for the General fund..

Fund Balance

In accordance with U.S. GAAP, the Authority may classify fund balance as nonspendable
restricted, committed, assigned, and/or unassigned based primarily on the extent to which
the Authority has spending constraints imposed upon the use of the resources in the
‘governmental fund. .

Nonspendable fund balance category includes amounts that cannot be spent because
they are not in spendable form, or legally or contractually required to be maintained

. intact. The “not in spendable form” criterion inciudes items that are. not expected to be
converted to cash. :

Restricted fund balance is reporte'é{ as restricted when constraints placed on the use of
resources are either externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or
regulations of governments or is imposed by law through constitutional provisions or
enabling legislation. The Authority can be compelled by an external party to use
resources only for the purposes specified.
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FORT MONROE AUTHORITY
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA)
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2024

NOTE2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIF[CANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Fund Balance (continued)

Committed fund balance classifi catlon includes amounts that can be used only for the
specific purposes imposed by formal action of Commonwealth of Virginia legislature or

. the Authority’s Board. Those committed amounts cannot be used for any other purpose
unless the same type of formal action is taken to remove or change the specified
commitment. Committed fund balance classification may be redeployed for other
purposes with appropriate formal actlon

Assigned fund balance amount classification is intended to be used by the Authority for
specific purposes but do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed.
In the General Fund, assigned amounts represent intended uses established by the
Board of Commlssmners appomted in accordance with the provisions of the Enabling
Act. o o

Unassigned fund balance is the: residual classification for the General Fund and includes |
all spendable amounts not contained in the other classifications.

When an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted
fund balance is available, the Authority considers restricted funds to have been spent
first, When an expenditure is incurred for which commifted, assigned, or unassigned
fund balances are available, the Authority considers amounts to have been spent first
out of committed funds, then assigned funds, and finally unassigned funds.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity wrth U.8. GAAP reqguires management
to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures.
Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates and assumptions.

Net Position

Net position represents the residual interest in the Authority’s assets and deferred outflows
of resources after liabilities and deferred inflows of resources are deducted and consist of
three sections: net investment in capital assets, restricted, and unrestricted. Net investment
in capital assets includes capital assets net of accumulated depreciation,. less any
outstanding debt related to the acguisition, construction, or improvement of those assets.
Net position is reported as restricted when constraints are imposed by third parties by
enabling legislation.
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NOTE3 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

All cash of the Authority is maintained In accounts collateralized in accordance with the
Virginia Security for Public Deposits Act, Section 2.2-4400 et. seq. of the Code of Virginia or
covered by Federal Depository Insurance. Cash consisted of the following as of June 30,

2024
Operating Accounts:
General Fund : $ 3,506,258
Enterprise Fund : 2,718,803
"~ Total Operating Accounts 6,225,061

Restricted Accounts:
General Fund: : :
Flex Spending Accounis , 9,290

African Landing Memorial ' ‘ 2,907,323
Homeless Support Services 428,367
Enterprise Fund: _ . ' _
Security Deposits on Residential Leases . 278,789
Security Deposits on Commercial Leases 38,837
Total Restricied Accounis ' 3,662,606
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents . $ 9387667
Carrying Bank
Amount - Amount
Cash on Hand $ 850 $ -
Demand Deposits 8,224,211 6,396,179
" Restricted Demand Deposits 3,662,606 3,662,606
Total ' _ $ 9,887,667 $ 10,058,785
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NOTE4 CAPITAL ASSETS

The following is a summary of the Authorify’s change in capital assets for the year ended

June 30, 2024:

Capitat Assets not Depraclated:
Donated Artifacts for Museum .
Construction in Progress -
Tatal Capital Assets not Depraclated

Capital Assets being Depreciated:
Motor Vehicle Equipment
Furniture and Equipment
Total Capital Assets being Depreciated

l.oss Accumulated Depreciation for:
Motor Vehicle Equipment
Furniture and Equipment
 Total Accumulated Depreciation
Total Capital Assets being Depreciated, Net
Total Capital Assets

Capitai Assets being Depraclatad:
Leasing Commissions
Tenant Improvements
Motor Vehicle Equipment
.Furniture and Equipment
Total Gapital Assets being Depreclated

Less Accumulated Depraciation for: -
Leasing Commissions
Motor Vehicle Equipment
Furniture and Equipment
Total Accumulated Depreciation
Total Capital Assets being Depreciated, Net
Total Capital Assets

Governmental Activities

Balance

Balance

July 1, 2022 |ncreases Decreases June 30, 2023
$ 58,705 § - 8§ - B 59,705
180,289 451,218 : - 631,507
239,994 . 451,218 - 691,212
108,035 - (20,210 87,825
169,709 97494 {169,261} 107,942
277,744 97,494 {179,471) 195,767
(27,528) (7.319) . 20,210 (14,637}
{166,226) (21,588) 159,261 {28,553)
(193,754) - (28,907) 179,471 (43,190)
83,990 68,687 n 162,577

$ 323984 § 519806 § - % 843,789

Business-Type Activities
Balance Balance

July 1, 2022 Increases Dacreases . June 30, 2023
$ 434,226 5 39,292 $ - % 473,518
95,531 8,571 (95,531) 8,571
35,666 8 (26,609) 9,057
16,075 - (18,075) -
581,498 47 863 {138,215) 491,146
{1858,537) (48,763) .- (234,300)
(33,476) {1,811) 28,809 {8,678)
{16,075) - 16,075 -
{235,088) (50,574) 42,684 (242,978)
346,410 (2,711) {95,531) 248,168

$ 346,410 § 2,711} % (95,531) § 248,168
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NOTE 4 CAPITAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)

NOTE §

NOTE 6

NOTE 7

As discussed in Note 1, all land, building, and infras.tructure acquisitions with an individual
cost of $100,000 are transferred to the Commonwealth as capital assets. There were no
assets transferred to the Commonwealth during the year ended June 30, 2024.

Depreciation on assets of governmenta! activities is charged to the Authority’s planning and
development expense function and depreciation on assets of business-lype activities is
charged to the Authority's property administration and maintenance function.

ACCRUED ANNUAL LEAVE

The following is a summary of thé Authority’s change in accrued annual leave for the year
ended June 30, 2024

Governmental Activities

Balance : Balance

July 1, 2023 Increases Decreases June 30, 2024

Accrued Annual Leave $ 92,272 $ 41250 % - 17272 § 116,250
Business-Type Activities ~
Balance Balance

. July 1, 2023 Increases Decreases Juhe 30, 2024

Accrued Annual Leave $ 13,257 $ 14,808 $ 13,406 $ 14,659

Leave balances are renewed on an annual basis with maximum annual carryover
limitations; as such, the balances are deemed to be short-term in nature.

TRANSFERS

In general, invoices received that encompass expenditures/expenses from both funds are
paid from the General Fund, creating an internal balance with the Enterprise Fund. During
the fiscal year ended June 30,2024 the General Fund fransferred $ 2,022,827 to the
Enterprise Fund. :

DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN

The Authority’s employees are eligible to participate in the Commonwealth of Virginia's 457
Deferred Compensation Plan (the Plan) available through the VRS. The Plan permits
employees to defer a portion of their salary to future years. Participation in the Plan is
optional. The deferred compensation is not available to employees until separation from
service, retirement, death, disability, financial hardship, and/or reaching age 70%. The Plan
offers a selection of investment options to participants. There were no contributions to the
plan for the year ended June 30, 2024.
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NOTE 8 . PENSION PLANS

Plan Description
All full-ime, salaried, permanent employees of state agencies are automatically covered by
the VRS State Employee Retirement Plan upon employment. This plan is administered by
the VRS along with plans for other employer groups in the Commonwealth of Virginia.
Members earn one month of service credit for each month they are employed and for which
_they and their employer are paying contributions to VRS. Members are eligible to purchase
prior service, based onh specific criteria as defined in the Code of Virginia, as amended.-
Eligible prior service that may be purchased includes prior public service, active military
service, certain periods of leave, and previously refunded service.

The System administers three different benefit structures for covered employees in the VRS
State Employee Retirement Plan — Plan 1, Plan 2, and Hybrid. Each of these benefit
structures has a different eligibility criteria. The specific information for each plan and the
eligibility for covered groups within each plan are set out in the table on the following pages.
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NOTE 8 PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED)

Plan Description (Continued)

RETIREMENT PLAN PROVISIONS

PLAN 1

PLAN 2

HYBRID RETIREMENT PLAN

About Plan 1

Plan 1 is a defined henefit plan, The retirement

benefit is based on a member’s age, service

credit, and average final compensation at
 refirement using a formula,

About Plan 2
Same as Plan 1

About the Hybrid Retirement Plan

The Hybrid Retiremerit Plan combines the
features of a defined benefi plah and a
defined contribution plan,

® The defined beneft Is based onh a
mamber's age, service credlt, and average
final compensation at retirement using a
formuila.

# The bensfit from the defined contitbution
component of the plan depends on the
member and employer contributions made
to the plan and the investment
performance of those contributions.

# |n additlon to the menthly benefit payment
payable from the defined benefit plan at
retirement, a member may start recelving
distributions from the balance in the
defined contributicn account, reflecting the.

“conliibutlons, investment gains, or losses,
and any requlred fees.

Eligible Members

Employess are in Plan 1 If thelr membership
date is before July 1, 2010, they were vestad
as of January 1, 2013, and they have not
taken a refund.

Hybrid Opt-In Electlon

VRS Plan 1 mambers were allowed to make
an irrevocable declsien to opt Into the Hybrid
Retirement Plan durlng a speclal election
window held January 1 threugh April 30,
2014,

The Hybrid Retlrement Plan’s effective date
for eligible Plan 1 members who opted in
was July 1, 2014,

If eligible deferred members raturned to work
during the election window, thoy ware also
eflgible to opt into the Hybrld Retlrement
Plan.

Eligible Membars

Employees are in Plan 2 if their membership
date Is from July 1, 2010, to December 31,

20113, and they have not taken a refund, or

their membership date is prier to July 1,
2010, and they were not vested as of
January 1, 2013,

Hybrid Opl-in Election

Same as Plan 1.

Eligible Members

Employeas are In the Hybrld Retirement Plan
If thelr membership date is on or after
January 1, 2014, This includes:

# Fulime permanent, salaried state
employees.®

® Members in Plan 1 or Plan 2 whe elected
to opt Into the plan durlng the election
window held January 1 through April 30,
20114, the plan’s effective date for opt-in
members was July 1, 2014.

*Noneligible Mambers

Some employees are not eligible to
participate in the Hybrid Retirement Plan.
They include:

@ Members of the Virglnia Law Officars’
Retlrament System {VaLORS)

These employees eligible for an optional
refirement plan (ORP) must elect the CRP
plan or the Hybrid Retiremeant Plan. If these
members have prior service under Plan 1 or

Plan 2, they are not eligible to elect the Hybrid.

Retirement Plan and must select Plan 1 or
Plan 2 (as applicable} or ORP.
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NOTE8 PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED)

Plan Description (Continued)

RETIREMENT PLAN PROVISIONS

PLAN1

PLAN 2

HYBRID RETIREMENT PLAN

Retirement Contributions

Slate employees, excluding state elected
officlals, and optlonal retirament plan
participants, contribute 5% of their
compensation each month to their member
contribution account through a pretax saary
reduction, Member contributions are tax-
defsrred until they are withdrawn as part of a
retlrement benefit or as a refund. The
employer makes a separate actuarially
determined contribution fo VRS for all
covered employees. VRS invests both
member and employer contributions to
‘provide funding for the future benefit
paynients. .

Retirement Gontributions
Same as Plan 1.

Retirement Contributions

A member's retirement benedit Is funded
through mandatory and. voluntary
contributions made by the member and the
employer to both the definéd benefit and the
defined contribution compenents of the plan,
Mandatory contributions are based on a
percentage of the employee’s creditable
campensation and are reguired from both the
member and the employar. Additionally,
members may choose to make veluntary
confributions to the defined contribution
component of the plan, and the employer Is
required to match those voluntary
contibutions according to specified
percentages.

Sarvica Credit

Service credit includes active service,
Members earn service credit for each month
they are employed in a covered position, It
alsa may include credit for prior service the
member has purchased or additional service /
credit the member was granted. A member's
fotal service credit is one of the factors used
to determine their eligibility for retirement and
fo calculate thelr retirement benefit. it also
may count toward eligibjlity for the health
insurance cradit in retirement, if the employer
offars the health insurance credit.

Sarvice Credit
Same as Plan 1.

Sorvice Crodit

Definad Banefit Component: Under the
defined benefit component of the plan,
service credit Ihcludes active service.
Members earn service credit for each month
they are employed in a covered position, It
also may inclugde credit for prior service the
member has purchased or additional service
credit the member was granted. A member's
total service credit is one of the factors used
to determina thair ellgibility for retirement and
to calculate their retirement benefit. It also
may count toward eliglbility for the health
Insurance credit in retirement, if the employer
offersthe health Insurance credit,

Defined Contributions Component; Under the
defined contributlon component, service
credit s used to determine vesting for the
employer contifbutlon partion of the plan.
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NOTE 8 PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED) -

RETIREMENT PLAN PROVISIONS”

FLAN 1

PLAN 2

HYBRID RETIREMENT PLAN

Vesting

Vesting is the minimum length of service a
membar neads to gualify for a future
retiremaent benefit. Members become vested
when they have at least five years (60
months) of service credlt. Vesting means
membets are eligible to qualify for retirement
if they mest the age and service
requirsments for thelr plan, Members alsc
must be vested to recelvae & full refund of
their member contribution account balanaose if

Members are always 100% vested in the
contributions that they make.

they leave employment and request a refund.

‘Vesting
Same as Plan 1.

Vasting

Defined Benefit Component: Defined benefit
vesting is the minlmum length of service a
member needs te qualify for a future
retirement benefit. Members are vested
under the defined benefit component of the
Hybrid Retirement Plan when they reach five |
years {60 menths) of service credit. Plan 1 or
Plan 2 mambers with at least five years {60

.menths) of service credit who apted into the
_Hybrld Retirement Plan remain vested In the

defined benefit component,

Defined Contributions Component: Defined
ceniribution vesting refers to the minimum
length of service a member needs to bo
aligible to withdraw the employer
contributions from the defined contribution
compenent of the plan.

Membefs are always 100% vested in the
conttibutions that they make.

Upon reflrement or leaving covered
employment, 2 member is eligible to
withdraw a percentage of employer
contributions to the defined confribution
component of the plan, based on service.

& After two years, a member is 50% vested
and may withdraw 50% of employar
contributiens.

& Aftar three years, a member is 756% vested
and may withdraw 75% of employer
contributions.

"® Aftar four or more years, a member is

100% vested and may withdraw 100% of
employer contributions.

Distributions not required, except as
governed by law, ’

Caleulating the Benefit

The basic benefit is determined using the
average final compensation, service credit,
and plan multiplier. An early retirernent
reckiction is applied to this amount if the
member Is retiting with a reduced benefit, in
cases where the member has elactad an
optional form of retirement payment, an option
factor specific to the optian chosen is then
applied.

Calculating the Benefit
See definition under Plan 1.

Calculating the Benefit

Defined Benefit Component: See definition
under Plan 1

Defined Contribution Component: The
benefit is based on contributions made by
the member and any matching contributions
made by the employer, plus nef investment
garnings on thosa contributions,
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NOTE8 PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED)

RETIREMENT PLAN PROVISIONS

PLAN 1

PLAN 2

HYBRID RETIREMENT PLAN

Avearage Final Compensation

A member's average final compensation ts
the average of the 36-consecutive months of
highest compensation as a covered
amployee,

Average Final Compensation

A member's average final compensation is
the average of their 80-consecutive menths
of highest compensation as a covered
employee,

Average Final Compensation

Same as Plan 2.-[t Is usad In the retirement
formula for the defined benéfit component of

the plan:

Service Retirement Multiplier

The retirement multiplier is a factor used In
the formula to determine a final retirement
benefit. The refirement multiplier for
nonhazardous duty membenrs Is 1.70%.

Service Retirement Multiplier

Same as Plan 1 for service eamed,
purchased or granted prior to January 1,

" 2013, Far nonhazardous duty members, the

refirement muitipller i 1.65% for service credit
earned, purchased or granted on or after
January 1, 2013, -

Service Retirament Nultiplier

Defined Benefit Component: The retirement
mudtiplier for the defined bensfit component is
1,00%, .

For members who opled Into the Hybrid
Retirement Plan from Plan 1 or Plan 2, the
applicable multipliers for those plans will be
used to caleulate the retirement bensfit for
service credited in those plans,

Defined Contribution Comporent: Not
applicable.

Mormal Retirement Age
Age 65.

Normal Retirement Age
Normal Social Security retiromant age.

Normal Retirement Age

. Defined Benefit Componant; Same as

Plan 2.

Defined Contribution Component: Members
are sligible ta receive distributiens upon
leaving employment, subject to restrictlons,

Earllest Unreduced Retirement Eligibility

Age 65 with at least five years (60 months) of
service credit or at age 50 with at least 30
years of service credit,

Earliest Unreduced Retirement Eligibility
Normal Social Security retirement age with ak

" least five years (60 months) of service credit .

or when their age and service equal 90.

Earllest Unreduced Retirement Eligibility
Defined Benefit Component: Same as Plan
2.

Defined Contribution Component: Members
are eligible to receive dislributions upen
leaving employment, subject to restrictions.

Earliest Reduced Retirement EligibRity

Age 55 with af least five years (60 months} of
service credit or age 50 with at least 10
years of service credit,

Earliest Reduced Retirement Eligibllity

Age 60 with at least five years (60 months) of
service oradit,

Earliest Redused Retirament Ellgibility
Definod Benefit Component: Same as Plan
2,

Definad Contribufion Component: Members
are sligible o recaive distributions upon
leaving employment, subject to restrictions.
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NOTE8 PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED)

- _RETIREMENT PLAN PROVISIONS

PLAN 1

PLAN 2

HYBRID RETIREMENT PLAN

Cost-of-Living Adjustment (COLA) in
Retirement

The COLA matches the first 3% Increase in
the Consumer Price Index for all Urban

Consumers (CPI-U) and half of any additional ~

Ingrease (up to 4%) up to a maximum COLA
of 5%, ’

Eligibility: .

For members who refire with an unreduced
banefit or with a reduced benefit with at least
20 years of service eredit, the COLA will go
into effect on July 1 after one full calendar
year from the retirement date,

For members who retire with a reduced
benefit and who have less than 20 years of
setvice credit, the COLA wil go into effect on
July 1 after one.calendar year following the
unreduced retirement eligibllity date.

Exgeplions to COLA Effestive Dates: The
COLA Is effective July 1 following one full
calendar year {(January 1 to December 31)
under any of the followlng clrcumstances:

@ The matmber is within flve years of
qualifying for an unreduced retirement
benefit as of January 1, 2013.

® The member retires cn disability,

® The member retires directly from
short-term or Jong-term disability.

#® The memkber |s involuntarily separated
frem employment for causes other than job
performance or misconduct and is eligible
to refire under the Workforce Transition

Act or the Transitlonal Beneflts Program.

® The member dies in service and the
mambet’s survivor or beneflclary Is eligible
for a monthly death-in-service benefit.

The COLA will go into effect on July 1
follewing one full ealendar year (Januacy 1 to
December 31) from the date the monthly
benefit begins,

Cost-of-Living Adjustment (COLA} in
Retirement

The COLA matches the first 2% Increase in
the CPIU and half of any additional Increase
(up to 2%}, for & maximum COLA of 3%,
Eligibility:

Same as Plan 1

Exceptions to COLA Effective Dafes: Same
as Plan 1

Cost-of-Living Adjustment {(COLA) in
Retirement .

Defined Beneflt Component: Same as

‘Plan 2, :

Defined Coniribution Component: Not
applicable. - ) :

Edigiibility:

Same as Plan 1 and Plan 2,

Exceptions fo COLA Elfective Dates: Same
as Plan 1 and Plan 2.
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Plan Description {Continued)

RETIREMENT PLAN PROVISIONS

PLAN 1

PLAN 2

HYBRID RETIREMENT PLAN -

Disability Coverage

. For members who are ellglble to be
consldered for disabllity refirement and retire
on disability, the retirement multipller is .
1.70% on all service, regardless of when it
was earned, purchased or granted.

Most state employees are covared under the
Virginta Slckness and Disakility Program
(YSDP), and are nof eligible for disability
retirement.

| VSDFP members ara subject to & one-ysar

waiting perlod before becoming eligible for
nonwork-related disabkility benefits.

' Disability Coverage

For members whe are ellgible to be
consldared for disability retrement and retire
on disability, the retirement multiplier Is
1.65% on all service, regardless of when it
was earned, purchased or granted,

Most state employees are covered under the
Virginia Sickness and Disability Program
(VSDP), and ara not ellglble for disability
retirement.

VSDP members are subject to a one-year
walting period before becoming aligible for
nonwork related disability benefits.

Disabllity Coverage

State employees (Including Plan 1 and
Plan 2 opt-ins) participating In the Hybrid
Retirement Plan are covered under the
Virginia Sickness and Disability Program
(VSDP), and are not eligible for disability
retirement.

Hybrid members {Including Plan 1 and Plan 2
opt-ins) covered under VSDP are subjectto a
one-year walling period before hecoming
sligible for nonwork-related disability
benefits.

Purchase of Prior Service

Members may be eligible to purchase
sarvice from previous public employment,
aclive duty millitary service, an eligible period
of leave, or VRS refunded service as service
credit in their plan. Prior senice credit cotnts
toward vesting, eligibility for retlrernent, and
the health insurance credit. Only active

Purchase of Prior Service
Same as Plan 1.

Purchase of Prior Service

- Defined Benefit Component: Same as

Plan 1, with the following exception:
® Hybrid Retirement Plan members are
Ineligible for ported service.

Defined Canfributlon Component. Not
applicable. -

members are eliglble to purchase prior
service. Members also may be eligible to
purchase pariods of leave without pay,

Contributions

The contribution requirement for active employees is governed by Section 51.1-145 of the
Coade of Virginia, as amended, but may be impacted as a result of funding provided to state
agencies by the Virginia General Assembly. Employees are required to contribute 5.00% of
their compensation toward their retirement. Each state agency’s contractually required
contribution rate for the year ended June 30, 2024, was 14.46% of covered employee
compensation for employees in the VRS State Employee Retirement Plan. This rate was
based on an actuarially determined rate from an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2021.
The actuarially determined rate, when combined with employee contributions, was expected
to finance the cost of benefits earmned by employees during the year, with an additional
amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. Contributions from the Authority to the
VRS State Employee Retirement Plan were $271,536 and $255,069 for the years ended
June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively.

In June 2023, the Commonwealth made a special contribution of approximately $25,093 to
the VRS State plan on. behalf of the Authority. This special payment was authorized by
Chapter 1 of the 2022 Appropriation Act, and is/are classified as special employer
contributions.
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Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Reéources and
Deferred Inflows of Resources Related o Pensions

At June 30, 2024, the Authority reported a liability of $1,738,007 for its proportionate share
of the VRS State Employee Retirement Plan Net Pension Liability. The Net Pension Liability
was measured as of June 30, 2023 and the {otal pension liability used to calculate the Net
Pension Liability was determined by an actuarial valuation performed as of June 30, 2022,
and rolled forward to the measurement date of June 30, 2023. The Authority’s proportion of
the Net Pension Liability was based on the Authority’s actuarially determined employer
contributions to the pension plan for the year ended June 30, 2023, relative to the total of

" the actuarially determined employer contributions for all participating employers. At June 30,

2023, the Authority's proportion of the VRS State Employee Retirement Plan was 0.03435%

~as compared to 0. 03615% at June 30, 2022.

For the year ended June 30, 2024, the Authority recognized a pensmn credit of $123 310 for
the VRS State Employee Rstirement Plan. Since there was a change in proportionate share
between June 30, 2022 and 2023 a portion of the pension expense was related to deferred
amounts from changes in proportion and from differences between employer contributions
and the proportionate share of employer contributions.

At June 30, 2024, the Authority reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows
of resources related to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred _ Deferred
Outflows Inflows
: of Resources of Resources
Differences Between Expected and Actual Experience $ 168,816 $ 50,205
Change in Assumptions : 22,960 -
Net Difference Between Projected and Actual Earnlngs .
on Pension Plan Investments _ 3 - 121,637
Changes in Proportion and Differences Between Employer .
Contributions and Proportionate Share of Contributions 38,674 68,201
Employer Contributions Subsequent to Measurement Date - - 271,536 ' -
Total - ' $ 501,986 $ 240,043

$271,536 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from the
Authority's contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a
reduction of the net pension liability in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2025. Other amounts

reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to

pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Years Ended June 30, Amount
2025 : $ (31,209)
2026 (107,459)
2027 124,675
2028 4,400
Total $ (9,593) -
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NOTE 8 PENSION PLANS {CONTINUED)

Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability for the VRS State Employee Retlrement Plan was based on an
actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2022, using the Entry Age Normal actuarial cost method
and the following assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement and
rolled forward to the measurement date of June 30, 2023. :

Inflation ‘ 2.50%

Salary Increases, Including Inflation 3.5% t0 5.35%
Investment Rate of Return 6.75%, Net of Pension Plan
' Investment Expense, Includ:ng
Inflation

| Mortality rates:-

Pre-Retirement:
FPub-2010 Armount Weighted General Employee Rates prOJected generatlonally
females set forward 2 years

Postretirement:
Pub-2010 Amount Welghted General Healthy Rehree Rates projected generatlonally,
110% of rates for females S

Post-Disablement;
Pub-2010 Amount Weighted General Dlsabled Rates projected generatlonally, males
and females set forward 3 years : ,

Benéﬁciari'es and Survivors: .
Pub-2010 Amount Weighted General Contingent Annuitant Rates projected
generationally; 110% of rates for maies and females. - :

Mortality Improvement:

Rates projected generatlonally with Modified MP-2020 Improvement Scale that is 5%
of the MP-2020 rates
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NOTE S PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED)

Actuarial Assumptions {Conti nued}

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2022 valuation were based on the results of
an actuarial experience study for the period from July 1, 2016 through June 30, 2020,
except the change in the discount rate, which was based cn VRS board action effective as
of July 1, 2021. Changes to the actuarial assumptions as a result of the experience study
are as follows:

Mortality Rates {Pre-retirement, Update to PUB2010 public sector mortality
postretirement healthy, and disabled) tables. For future mortality improvements,
: replace load with a modified Mortality
Improvement Scale MP-2020

Retirement Rates Adjusted rates to better fit experience for Plan 1;
- set separate rates based on experience for Plan
2/Hybrid; changed final retirement age from 75

to 80 for all
Withdrawal Rates ' _ Adjusted rates to better fit experience at each
year age and service through 9 years of service
Disability Rates _ ’ Adjusted to better match experlence
Salary Scale | : No change |
Line of Duty Disability No change
Discount Rate No change

Net Pension Liability

The net pension liability (NPL) is calculated separately for each plan and represents that
particular plan’s total pension liability- determined in accordance with U.S. GAAP, less that
system's fiduciary net position. As of June 30, 2023, NPL amounts for the VRS State
Employee Retirement Plan are as follows (amgunts expressed in thousands):

' State Employee Retirement Plan

Total Pension Liability , $ 28411528
Plan Fiduciary Net Position _ _ 23,351,827
Employers' Net Pension Liability $ 5,069,701

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a F’ercentage of
the Total Pension Liability - 82.19%

The total pension liability is calculated by the System’s actuary and each plan's fiduciary net
position is reported in the System’s financial statements. The net pension liability is
disclosed in accordance with the requirements of U.S. GAAP in the System'’s notes to the
financial statements and required supplementary information.
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NOTE 8 PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED)

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return

The long-term expected rate of return on pension System investments was determined
using a log-normal distribution analysis in which best-estimate ranges of expected future
real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension System investment expense and
inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce
the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by
the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. The target asset
allocation and best estimate of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class are

: summarized in the following table:

Weighted
Avrithmetic Average
Long-Term Long-Term
Expected Expected
Target | Rate of Rate of
~ Assets Class Strateqy Allocation Returp Return *
Public Equity 34.00% 6.14% 2.09%
Fixed Income 15.00% 2.56% 0.38%
Credit Strategies 14.00% 5.60% 0.78%
Real Assels : 14.00% 5.02% 0.70%
Private Equity : 16.00% 9.17% 1.47%
MAPS - Multi-Asset Public Strategies 4.00% 4.50% 0.18%
PIP - Private Investment Partnerships . 2.00% 7.18% 0.14%
Cash . 1,00% 1.20% 0.01%
Total 100.00% 5.75%
[nflation 2.50%
8.25%

Expected arithmetic nominal return*

* The above allocation provides a one-year expected return of 8.25%. However, one-year
returns do not take into account the volatility present in each of the asset.classes. In
setting the long-term expected return for the pension System, stochastic projections are
employed to model future returns under various economic conditions. These results
provide a range of returns over various fime periods that ultimately provide a medlan

return of 7.14%, including expected inflation of 2.50%.

On June 15, 2023, the VRS board elected a long-term rate of 6.75% which is roughly at
the 45th percentile of expected long-term results of the VRS fund asset allocation at that

time, providing a median return of 7.14%, including expected inflation of 2.50_%.
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NOTE8 PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED)

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6.75%. The projection of
cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that System member contributions
will be made per the VRS statutes and the employer contributions will be made in
accordance with the VRS funding policy at rates equal to the difference between actuarially
determined contribution rates adopted by the VRS Board of Trustees and the member rate.
Through the fiscal year ending June 30, 2023, the rate contributed by the Authority for the
VRS State Employee Retirement Plan will be subject to the portion of the VRS board-
certified rates that are funded by the Virginia General Assembly, which was 102% of the
actuarially determined contribution rate. From July 1, 2023, on, all agencies are assumed to
continue to contribute 102% of the actuarially determined contribution rates. Based on those
assumptions, the pension plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make
all projected future benefit payments of current active and inactive employees. Therefore,
the long-term expected rate of return was applied to all perlods of projected benefit
payments to determine the total pension liability.

Sensitivity of the Authority’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to

Changes in the Discount Rate .

The following presents the Authority's proportionate share of the VRS State Employee
Retirement Plan net pension liability using the discount rate of 6.75%, as well as what the
Authority's proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using
_a discount rate that is one percentage point lower (5.75%) or one percentage point higher
(7.75%) than the current rate:

Current
1.00% Discount 1.00%
Decrease Rate Increase
‘ (5.75%) (6.75%) {7.75%)
Authority’s Proportionate Share of the VRS I
State Employee Retirement Plan Net , '
Pension Liability $ 2,896,230 $ 1,738,007 $ 768,664

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about the VRS State Employee Retirement Plan's Fiduciary
Net Position is available in the separately issued VRS 2022 Annual Report. A copy of
the 2023 VRS Annual Report may be downloaded from the VRS website at
varetire.org/pdf/publications/2022-annual-report.pdf, or by writing to the System's Chief
Financial Officer at P.O. Box 2500, Richmond, Virginia, 23218 2500.

Payables to the Pension Plan
At June 30, 2024, no amounts were payable to VRS.
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NOTE9 OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLANS - VRS PLANS

The Authority participates in one muliiple employer, cost-sharing plans offered by VRS:
Group Life Insurance Program {GLIP), and two single employer plans that are presented as
multiple-employer, cost-sharing plans: State Employee Health Insurance Credit Program
(HICP)} and Virginia Sickness and Disability Program (VSDP}).

The Plans were established pursuant to § 51.1-500 et seq. of the Code of Virginia, as -
~amended, and which provides the authority under which benefit terms are established or
may be amended. ' '

Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about the GLIP, HICP, and VSDP Fiduciary Net Position is available in
the separately issued VRS 2022 Annual Report. A copy of the 2022 VRS Annual Report
may be downloaded from the VRS website at varetire.org/publications/2022-annual-
report.pdf, or by writing to the System’s Chief Financial Officer at P.O. Box 2500, Richmond,
Virginia 23218-2500,

The actuarial assumptions, long-term expected rate of return, and discount rate are the
same for the VRS OPEB programs. As such, the presentation of the actuarial assumptions

- and long-term expected rate of return are combined below. Specific information for the
OPERB plans will be presented after this section.

Actuarial Assumptions

Actuarial assumptions used for the YRS OPEB plans are the same as those used for the
- actuarial valuations of the VRS pension plans. :

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return

Long-term expected rate of return used for the VRS OPEB plans are the same as those
used for the actuarial valuations of the VRS pension plans.

Discount Rate

The discount rate used for the VRS OPEB plans are the same as those used for the
actuarial valuations of the VRS pension plans.

Health Insurance Credit Program

Plan Description

All full-time, salaried permanent employees of state agencies are automatically covered by
the VRS HICP. This plan is administered by the VRS, along with pension and other OPEB
plans, for public employer groups in the Commonwealth of Virginia. Members earn one
month of service credit toward the benefit for each month they are employed and for which
their employer pays contributions to VRS. The health insurance credit is a tax-free
reimbursement in an amount set by the General Assembly for each year of service credit
against qualified health insurance premiums retirees pay for single coverage, excluding any
portion covering the spouse or dependents, The credit cannot exceed the amount of the
premiums and ends upon the retiree’s death. :

(49)



FORT MONROE AUTHORITY
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA)
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2024

NOTES OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLANS - VRS PLANS {CONTINUED)

Health Insurance Credit Program (Continued)

Plan Description {Continued)

The specific information about the State HICP OPEB, including eligibility, coverage, and
benefits is set out in the table below:

HICP Plan Provisions

Eliglble Employees

The HICP was established January 1, 1920 for retired state employees covered under VRS, SPORS, VaLORS,
and JRS who retire with at least 15 years of service credit.

Eligible employees are enrclled automatically upon employment. They include:

¢ Full-time and part-time permanent salaried state employaes covered under VRS, SPORS, VaLORS,
and JRS,

Benefit Amounts
The HICP provides the following benefits for eligible employees:

» At Retirement: For state employees who retire with at least 15 years of service credit, the monthly
benefit is $4.00 per year of service per month with no cap on the benefit amount.

« Disability Retirement: For state employees, other than state police officers, who retire on disability or
go on fong-term disability under the VSDP, the monthly benefit is $120.00 or $4.00 per year of
setvice, whichever is higher.

For state police officer employees with a nonwork-related disability who retire on disability or go on long-term
disabllity under the VSDP, the monthly benefit is $120.00 or $4.00 per year of service, whichever s higher,

For state police officers with a work-related disability, there is no benefit provided under the HICP if the
premlums are being paid under the Virginia Line of Duty Act. However, they may receive the credit for
premiums paid for other qualified health plans.

HICP Notes :
»  The mionthly Health Insurance Credit benefit cannot exceed the indlvidual's premium amount.

» Employees who retire after being on long-term disability under VSDP must have at least 15 years of
service credit to qualify for the Health Insurance Credit as a retirese,

Contributions

The contribution requirement for active employeés is governed by Section 51.1-1400(D) of
the Code of Virginia, as amended, but may be impacted as a result of funding provided to
state agencies by the Virginia General Assembly. Each state agency’s contractually required
employer contribution rate for the year ended June 30, 2024 was 1.12% of covered
employee compensation for employees in the VRS HICP. This rate was based on an
actuarially determined rate from an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2021. The actuarially
determined rate was expected to finance the costs of benefits earned by employees during
the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. Contributions
from the Authority to the VRS HICP were $21,032 and $’|9 717 for the years ended June 30,
2024 and 2023, respectively.
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Health Insurance Credit Program (Continued)

Contributions (Continued)

In June 2023, the Commonwealth made a speclal contribution of approximately $8.5 million
which was applied to the Health Insurance Credit Plan for state employees. This special
payment was authorized by Chapter 2 of the Acts of Assembly of 2022, Special Session |,
as amended by Chapter 769, 2023 Acts of Assembly Reconvened Session, and is classified
as a special employer contribution.

OPEB Liabilities, OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and D Deferred
Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB

At June 30, 2024, the Authority reported a liability of $176,320 for its proportionate share of
the VRS HICP net OPEB Liability. The net VRS HICP OPEB liability was measured as of
June 30, 2023 and the total VRS HICP OPEB Liability used to calculate the net VRS HICP
OPEB Liability was determined by an actuarial valuation performed. as of June 30, 2022,
and rolled forward to the measurement date of June 30, 2022, The Authority's proportion of
the net VRS HICP OPEB liability was based on the Authority’s actuarially determined
employer contributions to the VRS HICP OPEB plan for the year ended June 30, 2022,
relative to the total of the actuarially determined employer contributions for all participating
state employers. At June 30, 2023, the Authcrity's propertion of the VRS HICP was
- 0.02146% as compared to 0.02247% at June 30, 2021.

For the year ended June 30, 2024, the Authority recognized VRS HICP OPEB expense of
$3,278. Since there was a change in proportionate share between measurement dates, a
'port|on of the VRS HICP Net OPEB expense was related to deferred amounts from changes
in proportlon

At June 30, 2024, the Authority reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows
of resources related to the VRS HICP OPEB from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows Inflows
, of Resources of Resources
Change in Assumptions $ 4,166 $ -
Differences between Expected and Actual Experience- 4 . 11,263
Net Difference between Projected and Actual Earnlngs ‘
on OPEB Plan Investments 480 . -
Changes in Proportion and Differences between Empioyer _
Contributions and Proporticnate Share of Contributions 8,035 11,514
Employer Contributions Subsequent fo the Meastrement .
Date , _ 21,032

Total . $ 33,687 $ 22777
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NOTE9 OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLANS — VRS PLANS (CONTINUED)

Health Insurance Credit Program (Continued)

OPEB Liabi‘lities, OPEB Expense, and Deferred Qutflows of Resources and Deferred
Inflows of Resources Related toc OPEB (Continued) '

$21,032 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to the HICP OPEB resulting
from the Authority's contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized
as a reduction of the Net HICP OPEB liability in the fiscal year ending June 30, 2025. Other
amounts repotted as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources -
related to the HICP OPEB will be recognized in the HICP OPEB expense in future reporting
periods as follows:

Years Ended June 30 Amount
2025 § {3,792)
2026 o {3,030)
2027 (669}
2028 . {1,793)
2029 ' {828)
Total $ {10,112}

Net HICP OPEB Liability .
The net OPEB liability (NOL} for the HICP represents the program's total OPEB liability
determined in accordance with U.S. GAAP, léss the associated fiduciary net position. As of

June 30, 2023, NOL amounts for the VRS State Employee HICP.is as follows (amounts
expressed in thousands): _ : ‘

State Employee HICP OPEB Plan

' Total HICP OPES Liability - $ 1,102,220
Plan Fiduciary Net Position’ 280,599
Net HICP OPEB Liability § 821,621

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of ,
the Total HICP OPEB Liability 25.46%

The total HICP OPEB liability is calculated by the System’s actuary, and the plan’s fiduciary-
net position is reported in the System’s financial statements. The net HICP OPEB liability is
disclosed in accordance with the requirements of U.S. GAAP in the System’s notes to the
financial statements and required supplementary information.
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Health Insurance Credit Program (Contmued)

Sensitivity of the Authority’s Proportionate Share of the HICP Net OPEB Llablllty to

Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the Authority’s proportionate share of the VRS net HICP OPEB
liability using the discount rate of 6.75%, as well as what the Authority’s proportionate share
of the net HICP OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one
percentage point iower (5.75%) or one percentage point higher (7. 75%) than the current

rate:
. Current
1.00% - Discount 1.00%
Decrease Rate Increase
(5.75%) {(6.75%) {7.75%)
Authority’s Proportionate Share of the VRS
State Employee HIC OPER Plan Net :
HIC OPEB Liability , _ $ 199,102 $§ 176320 $§ 156,784

Group Life Ihsurance Program

Plan Description

All full-time, salaried permanent employees of the state agencies, teachers, and employees
of participating political subdivisions are automatically covered by the VRS GLIP upon
employment. This plan is administered by the VRS, along with pensions and other OPEB
plans, for public empioyer groups in the Commonwealth of Virginia.

In addition to the basic group life insurance benefit, members are also eligible to elect
additional coverage for themselves as well as a spouse or dependent children through the
Optional Group Life Insurance Program. For members who elect the optional group life
insurance coverage, the insurer bills employers directly for the premiums. Employers deduct
these premiums from members’ paychecks and pay the premiums to the insurer. Since this
is a separate and fully insured program, it is not included as part of the GLIP OPEB.

(83)



FORT MONROE AUTHORITY
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA)
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2024

NOTE9 OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT B-ENEFIT.PLANS — VRS PLANS (CONTINUED)
Group Life Insurance Program (Continued)

Plan Description (Cont'mjed)

The specific information for GLIP OPEB, inclhiding e|tg|blllty, coverage and benefits is set out
in the table below:

GLIP Plan Provisions

Eligible Employees

The GLIP was established July 1, 1960, for state employees, teachers, and employees of political subdivisions
that elect the program, including the following employers that do not participate in VRS for retirement:

« City of Norfolk o s City of Roanoke
+ City of Portsmouth -+ Roancke City School Board
» City of Richmond :

Basic group life insurance coverage is automatic upon employment. Coverage ends for employees who [eave
their position before retirement eligibility or who take a refund of their accumulated retirement member
contributions and accrued interest.

Benefit Amounts
The benefits payable under the GLIP have several components. .

¢  Natural Death Benefit: The natural death benefit is equal to the employee’s covered compensatlon
rounded to the next highest thousand and then doubled.

s Acgidental Death Benefit: The accidental death benefit Is double the natural death benefit.

+  Other Benefit Provisions: in addifion to the basic natural and accidental death benefits, the ﬁrogram
provides additional benefits provided under specific circumstances. These include:

¢ Accidental dismemberment benefit
Seatbelt benefit

Repatriation benefit

Felonious assault benefit
Accelerated death benefit option

o000

Reduction in Benefit Amounts'

The benefit amounts provided to members covered under the GLIP are subject to a reduction factor. The
benefit amount reduces by 26% on January 1 following cne calendar year of separation. The benefit amount
reduces by an additional 25% on each subsequent January 1 until it reaches 25% of its original value.

Minimum Benefit Amount and COLA

For covered members with at least 30 years of service credit, there is a minimum benefit payable under the Group
Life Insurance Pragram. The minimum benefit was set at $8,000 by statute in 2015. This will be increased annually
based on the VRS Plan 2 cost-of-living adjustment calculation. The minimum benefit adjusted for the COLA was
$8,984 as of June 30, 2023.
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Group Life Insurance Progr'am (Continued)

Contrlbutlons

The. contribution requirements for the GLIP are governed by Section 51.1 506 and Section
51.1-508 of the Code of Virginia, as amended, but may be impacted as a result of funding
provided to state agencies and school divisions by the Virginia General Assembly. The total
rate for the GLIP was 1.34% of covered employee compensation. This was allocated into an
empioyee and an employer component using a 60/40 split, The employee component was
0.80% (1.34% X 60%) and the employer component was 0.54% (1,34% X 40%). Employers
may elect to pay all or part of the employee contribution; however, the employer must pay all
of the employer contribution. Each employer’s contractually required employer contribution
rate for the year ended June 30, 2024, was 0.54% of covered employee compensation. This
rate was based on an actuarially determined rate from an actuarial valuation as of June 30,
2021. The actuarially determined rate, when combined with employee contributions, was
expected to finance the costs of benefits payable during the year, with an additional amount
to finance any unfunded accrued liability. Contributions to the GLIP from the entity were
$10,140 and $9,599 for the years ended June 30 2024 and 2023 respectlvely

OPEB Liabilities, OPEB Expense, and Deferred 0utﬂows of Resources and [ Deferred
Inflows of Resources Related o OPEB

At June 30, 2023, the Authority reported a liability of $90,548 for its proportionate share of
the net GLIP OPEB liability. The net GLIP OPEB lability was measured as of June 30,
2023, and the total GLIP OPEB Liability used to calculate the net GLIP OPEB Liability was
determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2022, and rolled forward to the
measurement date of June 30, 2023. The covered employer’s proportion of the net GLIP
- OPEB liability was based on the covered employer's actuarially determined employer
contributions to the GLIP for the year ended June 30, 2023, relative to the total of the
actuarially determined employer contributions for all pariicipating employers. At June 30, -
2023, the participating employers proportion was 0.00755% as compared to 0.00788% at
June 30, 2022 _

For the year ended June 30, 2024, the Authority recognlzed GLIP OPEB credit of $5,262.
Since there was a change in proportionate share between measurement dates, a portion of
the GLIP OPEB expense was related to deferred amounts from changes in proportion.,
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NOTE9 OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLANS — VRS PLANS (CONTINUED)
Group Life Insurance Program {Continued)

OPEB Liabilities, OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred
Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB PEB (Conti inued)

At June 30 2024, the employer reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to the GLIP OPEB from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows - Inflows
" of Resources of Resources
Differences between Expected and Actual Expenence $ 9,044 $ 2,749
Change in Assumptions 1,938 _ 6,274
Net Difference between Projected and Actual Earnings
on OPEB Program Investments - 3,639
Changes in Proportion and Differences between Employer _
Contributions and Propartionate Share of Confributions 5,551 6,714
Employer Contributions Subsequent to Measurement Date 10,140 -
Total $ 26,671 § 19,376

$10,140 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to the GLIP OPEB resulting from -
the employer's contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a
reduction of the net GLIP OPEB liability in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2025. Other
amounts reported. as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to the GLIP OPEB will be recognized in the GLIP OPEB expense in future reporting
periods as follows:

Years Endad June 30 Amount
2025 $ (963)
2026 (4,198)
2027 1,878
2028 229
2027 . 209
Total . 3 {2,845)
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Group Life Insurance Program (Continued)

Net OPEB Liability

The NOL for the GLIP represents the program’s total OPEB Liability determined in
accordance with U.S. GAAP, less the associated fiduciary .net position. As of June 30, 2023,
NOL amounts for the GLIP is as follows (amounts expressed in thousands):

Group Life Insufance OPEB Plan

Total GLIP OPEB Liability $ 3,907,052

Plan Fiduciary Net Position ] - 2,707,739

Employer's Net GLI OPEB Liability $ 1,199,313

Ptan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of
the Total GLI OPEB Liability 69.30%

The total GLIP OPEB Liability is calculated by the System's actuary, and the plan’s fiduciary
net position is reported in the System’s financial statements. The net GLIP OPEB Liability is
disclosed in accordance with the requirements of U.S. GAAP in the System's notes to the
financial statements and required supplementary information.

Sensitivity of the Employer’s Proportionate Share of the Net OPEB L.jability to
Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the employer's proportionate share of the net GLIP OPEB Liability
using the discount rate of 6.75%, as well as what the employer's proportionate share of the
net GLIP OPEB Liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one -
percentage point lower (5.75%) or one percentage point higher (7. 75%) than the current

rate:
Current
1.00% -Discount 1.00%
Decrease " Rate Increase
(5.75%) (6.75%) (7.75%)
Authority's Proportionate Share of the
GLIP Net OPEB Liability $ 134,221 $ 80,548 $ 55,239
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Virginia Sickness and Disability Program

Plan Description

All full-time and part-time permanent salaried state employees who are covered under the
VRS, the State Police Officers' Retirement System (SPORS), or the Virginia Law Officers’
Retirement System (VaLORS) hired on or after January 1, 1999 are automatically covered
by the VSDP upon employment. The Disability Insurance Program also covers state
employees hired before January 1, 1999 who elected to transfer to VSDP rather than retain
their eligibility to be considered for disability retirement. This plan is administered by the
VRS, along with pensions and other OPEB plans, for public employer groups in the
- Commonwealth of Virginia.

The specific information for VSDP OPEB, including eligibility, coverage and benefits is set
out in the table below:

VSDP Plan Provisions

Eligible Employees
The VSDP, also known as the Disability Insurance Trust Fund was established January 1, 1998, to provide
short-term and long-term disability benefits for nonwork-related and work-related disabilities.

Eligible employees are enrolled automatically upen employment. They include:

« Full-ime and part-time permanent salaried state employees covered under VRS, SPORS, and
VaL.ORS {(members new to VaL.ORS following its creation on October 1, 1999, have been enralled
since the inception of VSDP}. '

e State employées hired before January 1, 1999, who slected to transfer to VSDP rather than retain
their eligibility to be considered for VRS disability retirement.

e Public college and university faculty members who elect the VRS defined benefit plan. They may
participate in VSDP or their institution’s disability program, if offered. If the institution does not offer the
program or the faculty member does not make an election, he or she is enrolled in VSDP,

| Benefit Amounts
The VSDP provides the foliowing benefits for eligible employees:

«  Leave: Sick, family, and personal leave. Eligible leave bensfits are paid by the empioyer

s Short-Term Disabiifty: The program provides a short-term disability benefit beginning after a seven-
calendar-day waiting period from the first day of disability. The benefit provides income replacement
beginning at 100% of the employse’s pre-disability income, reducing to 80% and then 60% based on
the period of the disability and the length of service of the employee. Short-term disability benefits are
paid by the employer.

« Long-Term Disability (LTD): The program provides a long-term disability benefit beginning after 125
workdays of short-term disability and continuing until the employee reaches his or her normal
retirement age. The benefit provides income replacement of 60% of the employee's pre-disability
Income. If an employee becomes disabled within five years of his or her normal retirement age, the
employee will receive up to five years of VSDP benefits, provided he or she remains medicaily
eligible. Long-term disability benefits are paid for by the VSDP OPEB Plan.

s Income Replacement Adjusiment: The program provides for an income replacement adjustment to
80% for catastrophic conditions.

e VSDP Long-Term Care Plan: The program also includes a self-funded long-term care plan that assists
with the cost of covered long-term care services.
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NOTE9 OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLANS — VRS PLANS (CONTINUED)
Virginia Sickness and Disability Program (Contmued)

Plan Description {Continued)

VSDP Plan Provisions '

Disability Insuranice Program (VSDP} Plan Notes

= Employess hired or rebired on or after July 1, 2009, must satiéfy eligibllity pertiods before beco'ming
eligibie for nonwork-related short-term disability benefits and certain income-replacement levels.

s  A'state employee who is approved for VSDP benefits on or after the date thal is five years prior to his
or her normal retirement date is eligible for up five years of VSDP benefits,

¢  Employees on work-related short-term disability receiving only a workers' compensation payment may
. be eligible to purchase service credit for this period If retirement contributions are not being withheld
from the workers’ compensation payment. The rate will be based on 5.00% of the employee’s
compensation.

Cost-of—meg Adjustment (COLA)

e During periods an employee receives long-term dlsablllty benefits, the LTD benefit may be increased
annually by an amount recommended by the actuary and approved by the Board.

o Plan 1 employees vested as of 1/1/2013 — 100% of the VRS Plan 1 COLA (The first 3% increase
in the Consumer Price Index for all Urban Consumers (CPI- U) and half of any addltlonal Increase
{up to 4%) up to a maximum COLA of 5%).

o Plan 1 employee nonvested as of 1/1/2013, Plan 2 and Hybrid Plan employees —100% of the VRS
Plan 2 and Hybrid COLA {The first 2% increase in the Consumer Price Index for alf Urban
Consumers (CPI-U} and half of any additional increase {up to 2%) up to a maximum COLA of 3%).

«  For participating full-time employees taking service retirement, the creditable compensation may be
increased annually by an amount recommended by the actuary and approved by the board, from the
date of the commencement of the disability to the date of retirement.

o 100% of the increase in the pay over the prewous plan year for confinuing VSDP members in the
state, SPORS, and ValLORS plans, with a maximum COLA of 4.00%

e  For participating fuli-t|me employees receiving supplemental (work-related) disability benefits, the
creditable compensation may be increased annuaily by an amount recommended by the actuary and
approved by the board, from the date of the commencement of the disability to the date of retirement

o 100% of the increase In the pay over the previous plan year for continuing VSDP members in the
state, SPORS; and VaLORS plans, with a maximum COLA of 4.00%.

Contributlons

The contribution requirements for the VSDP are governed by Section 51.1- 1140 of the Code
of Virginia, as amended, but may be impacted as a result of funding provided to state
agencies ‘by the Virginia General Assembly. Each employer's contractually required
employer contribution rate for the VSDP for the year ended June 30, 2023, was 0.61% of
covered employee compensation. This rate was based on an actuarially determined rate
from an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2021. The actuarially determined rate was
expected to finance the costs of benefits payable during the year, with an adjustment to
amortize the accrued OPEB assets. Contributions to the VSDP from the Authority were
$11,455 and $10,739 for the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively.
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NOTE ¢ OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLANS — VRS PLANS {CONTINUED)
Virginia Sickness and Disability Program (Continued)

OPEB Assets, OPEB Exp.ense. and Deferred Qutflows of Resources and Deferred
Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB

At June 30, 2023, the Authority reported an asset of $109,768 for its proportlonate share of
the net VSDP OPEB asset. The net VSDP OPEB asset was measured as of June 30, 2023,

and the total VSDP OPEB liability used to calculate the net VSDP OPEB asset was

determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2022, and rolled forward to the
measurement date of June 30, 2023. The Authority's proportion of the net VSDP OPEB
asset was based on the agency’s actuarially determined employer -contributions to the

VSDP OPEB plan for the year ended June 30, 2023, relative to the total of the actuarially
determined employer contributions for all participating employers. At June 30, 2023, the

Authority’s proportion was 0.03475% as compared 0.03699% at June 30, 2022,

For the year ended June 30, 2024, the Authority recbgnized VSDP OPEB credit of $8,9186.
Since there was a change in proportionate share between measurement dates, a portion of
the VSDP OPEB expense was related to deferred amounts from changes in proportion,

At June 30, 2024, the Authority reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows
of resources related to the VSDP OPEB from the following sources:

Deferred ~ Deferred
Outflows Inflows
: of Resources of Resources
Differences between Expected and Actual Experlence $ 7,911 5 15,103
Change in Assumptions ' 377 1,207
Net Difference between Projected and Actual Eamings '
on OPEB Pian Investments - 3,010
Changes In Proportion and Differences between Employer
Contributions and Proportionate Share of Contributions 7,814 3,906
Employer Contributions Subsequent to Measurement Date 11,455 -
Total - _ $ 27,557 $ 23,226
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NOTE 9 OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLANS — VRS PLANS (CONTINUED)
Virginia Sickness and Disability Program (Continued)

OPEB Assets, OPEB Expense, and Deferred Quiflows of Resources and Deferred
Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB (Continued)

$11,455 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to the VSDP OPEB resuitmg
from the Authority’s confributions subsequent to' the measurement date will be recognized
as an adjustment of the net VSDP OPEB asset in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2025,

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to the VSDP OPEB will be recognized in VSDP OPEB expense in future reporting
periods as follows:

Years Ended June 30 Amount

2025 . $ (4,665)

2026 - {4,855)
2027 . , 750 .

2028 — o 66

2029 766

Thereafter - ‘ 814

. Total $  (7.124)

Net OPEB Asset

The net OPEB asset (NOA) for the VSDP represents the program’s total OPEB liability
determined in accordance with U.S. GAAP, less the associated fiduciary net position. As of
June 30, 2022, NOA amounts for the VSDP is as follows (amounts expressed in thousands):

Disability Insurance Program
Total VSDP OPEB Liability ' ' | $ -318,901

Plan Fiduciary Net Position . 834,779
.Employer's Net OPEB Asset _ ' $ (315,878)

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of
the Total VSDP OPEB Liability 198.05%

The total VSDP OPEB liability is calculated by the System’s actuary, and each plan’s
fiduciary net position is reported in the System'’s financial statements. The net OPEB asset
is disclosed in accordance with the requirements of U.S. GAAP in the System’s notes to the
financial statements and required supplementary information.
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NOTE® OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLANS — VRS PLANS (CONTINUED)

Virginia Sickness and Disability Program (Continued)

Sensitivity of the Authontv s Proportionate Share of the OPEB Asset to Changes in
the Discount Rate

The following presents the Authority's proportionate share of the net VSDP OPEB asset
using the discount rate of 6.75%, as well as what the Authority’s proportionate share of the
net VSDP OPEB asset would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one
percentage point lower (5. 75%) or one percentage point higher (7.75%) than the current
rate:

Current
1.00% Discount 1.00%
Decrease Rate : Increase
: {5.75%) (6.75%) (7.75%)
Authority's Proportionate Share of . ‘
the VSDP Net OPEB Asset % 101,583 $ 109,768 § 116982

Actuarial Assumptions and Methods .

The total VRS Plan’s liability was based on an actuarial valuation with a valuation date of
June 30, 202, using the Enfry Age Normal actuarial cost method and the following
assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement and rolled forward to the
measurement date of June 30, 2022,

Inflation | 2.50%

Projected Salary Increases 3.50% f0 5.35%

Investment Rate of Return 6.75, net of plan mvestment expenses, including mfiatlon

Mortality .

Pre-Retirement Pub-2010 Amount Weighted General Employee Rates
, - projected generationally; females set forward 2 years

Postretirement ' Pub-2010 Benefits Weighted General Healthy Retiree

Pub-2010 Amount Weighted General Healthy Retiree
Rates projected generationally; 110% of rates for

females

Post-Disablement Pub-2010 Amount Weighted General Disabled Rates
projected generationally; males and females set forward
3 years

Beneficiaries and Survivors Pub-2010 Amount Weighted General Contingent

Annuitant Rates projected generationally; 110% of rates
for males and females
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NOTE 10 OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLANS — DHRM PLAN

Plan Description - '

Pre-Medicare Reliree Healthcare is a single- employer defined benefit OPEB plan that is
treated like a cost sharing plan for financial reporting purposes. This program was
established by Title 2.2, Chapter 28 of the Cede of Virginia for retirees who are not yet
eligible to. participate in Medicare. It is the same health insurance program offered to active
employees_and managed by the Virginia Department of Human Resource Management
(DHRM). After retirement, the Authority no longer subsidizes the retiree’s premium;
however, since both active employees and retirees are included in the same pool for
purposes of determining health insurance rates, retiree rates are effectively lower than what
might otherwise be available outside of this benefit.

Plan Provisions

DHRM is an agency of the Commonwealth of Virginia. DHRM is the administrator of the
Commonwealth’s employee health insurance program. The Commonwealth provides a
heaithcare plan established by Title 2.2, Chapter 28 of the Code of Virginia for retirees who
are not yet eligible to participate in Medlcare

Following are eligibifity requirements for Virginia Retirement System retirees:

e He or she is a retiring state employee who is eligible for a monthly retirement benefit
from the VRS, and

¢ He or she starts receiving (do not defer) your retirement benefit immediately upon
retirement®, and

s His or her last employer before retirement was the Commonwealth af Virginia, and

« He or she is eligible for {even if you were not enrolled). coverage as an active
employee in the State Health Benefits Program until your retirement date (not
inciuding Extended Coverage/COBRA), and’ '

s Heorshe enrolls no later than 31 days from your retirement date.

*  Faor VRS retirees, this means that the employing agency reported a retirement
contribution or leave without pay status for retirement in the month immediately prior to
their retirement date. Some faculty members may also be eligible if they are paid on an
alternate pay cycle but maintain eligibility for active coverage until their retirement date.
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NOTE 10 OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLANS — DHRM PLAN (CONTINUED)

Plan Provisions {Contlnued)

Effective January 1, 2017**, following are el:g|b|I|ty requwements for Optlonal Retirement
Plan retirees: . .

» He or she is a terminating state employee who participates in one of the qualified
Optional Retirement Plans, and
His or her last employer before termination was the Commonwealth of Virginia, and
e He or she is eligible for (even if they were not enrolled} coverage in the State
Employee Health Benefits Program for active employees at the time of their
termination, and _
= He or she meet the age and service requirements for an immediate retirement
benefit under the non ORP Virginia Retirement System plan that you would have
been eligible for on your date of hire had he or she not elected the ORP, and
« He or she enroll in the State Retiree Health Benefits Program no later than 31 days
from the date you lose coverage (or lose eligibility coverage) in the State Health
Benefits Program for active employees due to their termination of employment.
**  This change applies to ORP terminations effective January 1, 2017, or |ater. Eligibility for
those who terminated employment prior to January 1 should be determined based on
the policy in place at time of their termination.

The employer does not pay a portion of the retirees’ healthcare premium; however, since
both active employees and retirees are included in the same pool for purposes of
determining health Insurance rates, this generally results In a higher rate for active
employees. Therefore, the employer effectively subsidizes the costs of the participating
retirees’ healthcare through payment of the employers portion of the premiums for active
employees. ‘

This fund is reported as part of the Commonwealth's Healthcare Internal Service Fund.
Benefit payments are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit
terms. Pre-Medicare Retiree Healthcare is a single-employer defined benefit OPEB plan that
is treated like a cost-sharing plan for financial reporting purposes and is administered by the
Department of Human Resource Management. There were approximately 3,551 retirees
and 92,780 active employees in the program as of June 30, 2023. There are no inactive
employees entitled to future benefits who are not currently receiving benefits. There are no
assets accumulated in a trust to pay benefits.

(64)




- FORT MONROE AUTHORITY
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA)
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2024

NOTE 10 OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLANS ~ DHRM PLAN (CONTINUED) -

Actuarial Assumptions and Methods

The total Pre-Medicare Retiree Healthcare OPEB liability was based on an actuarial
valuation with a valuation date of June 30, 2023. The DHRM selected the economic,
demographic, and healthcare claim cost assumptions. The actuary provided guidance with
respect to these assumptions. Initial healthcare costs trend rates used were 7.75% for
medical and pharmacy and 4,00% for dental. The ultimate trend rates used were 4.50% for
medical and pharmacy and 4.00% for dental.

Actuarial Cost Method

Measurement Date

Actuarial Cost Method
Amortization Method
Effective Amortization Period
Discount Rate

Projected Salary Increases

Medical Trend Under 65
Year of Ultimate Trend
Mortality :

. Pre-Retirement

Postretirement

Post-Disablement

Beneficiaries and Survivors

Actuarially determined contribution rates are calculated

‘as of June 30, one year prior to the end of the fiscal year

in which contributions are reporied.

June 30, 2023 (one year prior to the end of the fiscal
year)

Entry Age Normal

L evel dollar, Closed

5.80 years '

3.65%

5.35% to 3.5% based on years of service from 1 year to
20 years or more

Medical & Rx: 7.75% to 4.50% Dental: 4.00%

2033 ' '

Mortality rates vary by participant status and gender
Pub-2010 Benefits Weighted General Employee Rates
projected generationally with a Modified MP-2021
Improvement Scale; females set forward 2 years
Pub-2010 Benefits Weighted General Healthy Retiree
Rates projected generationally with a Modified MP-2021
Improvement Scale; 110% of rates for females

Pub-2010 Benefits Weighted General Disabled Rates

- projected generationally with a Modified MP-2021

Improvement Scale; males and females set forward
3 years ‘ N

Pub-2010 Benefits Weighted General Contingent
Annuitant Rates projected generationally with a Modified
MP-2021 Improvement Scale; 110% of rates for males
and females

The discount rate was based on the Bond Buyers GO 20 Municipal Bond ‘Index as of the
measurement date, which is June 30, 2023.

(65)



FORT MONROE AUTHORITY
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA)
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2024

NOTE 10 OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLANS — DHRM PLAN {(CONTINUED)

- Actuarial Assumptions and Methaods {Contihued}

Changes of Assumptions: The following assumptions were updated since the June 30, 2022
valuation based recent experience:

e Retiree participation — remained at 35%
s Spousal Coverage — rate remained at 20 percent

Retiree participation was based on a blend of recent experlence and the prior vear
assumpt:ons

The trend rates were updated based on economic conditions as of June 30, 2023.
Additionally, the discount rate was increased from 3.54 percent to 3.65 percent based on the
Bond Buyers GO 20 Municipal Bond Index as of June 30, 2023.

There were no plan changes in the valuation since the prior year,

' OPEB Liabilities, OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred
Inflows of Resources

At June 30, 2024, the employer reported a liability of $79,583 for its proportionate share of
the collective total Pre-Medicare Retiree Healthcare OPEB liability of $351.9 million. The
Pre-Medicare Retiree Healthcare OPEB liability was measured as of June 30, 2023 and was
determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The covered employer's propottion of
the Pre-Medicare Retiree Healthcare OPEB liability was based on each employer's
healthcare premium contributions as a percentage of the total employer's healthcare
premium contributions for all participating employers. At June 30, 2023, the participating
employer's propottion was 0.02261% as compared to 0.02386% at June 30, 2022. For the
vear ended June 30, 2024, the Authority recognized Pre—Medlcare Retiree Healthcare
OPEB credit of $47,219. -

At June 30, 2024, the Authority reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows
of resources related to the Pre Medicare Retiree Healthcare OPEB from the following

sources:

Deferred . Deferred

Outflows Inflows
- of Resourcses of Resources
Differences between Expected and Actual Experlence $ 2,041 $ 19,237
Change In Assumptions - 48,725
Changes in Proportion and Differences between Employer 41,280
Contributions and Proportionate Share of Contributions 10,694 -
Employer Contributions Subsequent to the Measurement 6,309 -
Total i $ 19,044 $ 109,222
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NOTE 10 OTHER 'POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLANS — DHRM PLAN (CONTINUED)

OPEB Llabllltles, OPEB Expense, and Deferred Qutflows of Resources and Deferred
Inflows of Resources (Conti inued)

The amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to the Pre Medicare Retiree Healthcare OPEB will be recognized in the Pre—
Medicare Retiree Healthcare OPEB expense in future reporting perlods as follows:

Years Ended Jung 30, Amount
' 2025 - §  (45,365)
2026 ' (28,492)
2027 g _ (14,681)
2028 ' (6,220)
2029 ' (1,729)
Total ' $ {96,487)

Sensitivity of the Authority’s Proportionate Share of the OPEB Liability to Chgnqés in
the Discount Rate

The following presents the Authority’s proportionate share of the Pre-Medicare Refiree
Healthcare OPEB liability using the discount rate of 3.65%, as well as what the Authority's
‘proportionate share of the Pre-Medicare Retiree Healthcare OPEB liability would be if it
were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower (2.65%) or one
percentage point higher (4.65%) than the current rate: ,

.~ Current
1.00% Discount - 1.00%
Decrease Rate Increase
(2.65%) (3.65%) {4.65%)
Authority’s Proportionate Share of the Total
Pre-Medicare Retiree Healthcare OPEB
Liability $ 84,288 $ 79,583 $ 75,002

Sensitivity of the Authority’ MM—M\QEMQQQE;E
Healthcare Cost Trend Rates

The following presents the Authority's proportionate share of the Pre-Medicare Retiree
Healthcare OPEB liability using the healthcare cost trend rate of 7.75% decreasing to
4.50%, as well as what the Authority’s proportionate share of the Pre-Medicare Retiree
Healthcare OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a healthcare cost trend rate
that is one percentage point lower (6.75% decreasing to 3.50%) or one percentage point
higher (8.75% decreasing to 5.50%) than the current rate:

(67)



FORT MONROE AUTHORITY
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA)
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2024

NOTE 10 OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLANS — DHRM PLAN {CONTINUED)

Sensitivity of the Authority’s Proportionate Share of OPEB Liability to Changes in the
Healthcare Cost Trend Rates (Continued)

Current
Healthcare '
1.00% ' Cost 1.00%
Decrease Trend Rate Increase
(6.75% (7.75% (8.75%
Decreasing Decreasing Decreasing
ta 3.50%) 0 4.50%) 0 5.50%)
Authority's Proportionate Share of the Total :
Pre-Medicare Retiree Healthcare OPEB
Liability $ 72,398 $ 79,5683 $ 87,918

NOTE 11 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Payments in Lieu of Taxes

~ Virginia Acts of Assembly 2013 Session, Section 2.2.2342 B stipulates “that the Authority
shall pay to the City a fee on the total assessed value of all real property interests in the
Authority's Area of Operation, public and private as provided by law, divided by $100,
multiplied by the then-current real estate tax rate set by the City, minus the real estate taxes
owed to the City from taxpayers within the Authority’s Area of Operation”. Additionally, this
section stipulates “that properties at Fort Monroe that would not be taxed by the City if
privately held shall be exempt from the fee”.

Commitments

The Authority had entered into various agreements and construction contracts during the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2024. As of June 30, 2024, the balance outstanding on the
agreements and contract was $2,407,099. '

NOTE 12 LEASES-

Lease Receivable

The Authority leases commercial office space and land to varlous third parties under
multiple leases. The leases are for periods ending at various dates through December 2054
and the Authority receives monthiy lease payments ranging from $1,258 to $54,252, The
Authority recognized $1,188,958 in lease revenue and $497,094 in interest revenue during
the current fiscal year related to these leases. As of June 30, 2024, the Authority’s
receivables for lease payments were §15,291,835, respectively. Also, the Authority has a
deferred inflow of resources associated with this Iease that will be recognized as revenue
over the lease term. As of June 30, 2024, the balance of the deferred inflow of resources
was $14,388,475.
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NOTE 12 LEASES (CONTINUED)

Lease Receivable (Continued) |
Total princ_ipal and interest to be received under lease agreements are as follows:

Years Ended June 30, Principal interest Total

2025 $ 955,833 $ 609,889 $ 1,532,824
2026 814,571 581,738 1,610,194
2027 874,723 550,085 1,232,037
2028 642,807 521,282 991,087
2029 619,659 499,094 894,511
2030 - 2034 3,308,071 2,117,881 4,383,527
2035 - 2039 2,509,697 1,627,628 3,390,973
2040 - 2044 3,429,241 - 1,075,315 3,342,164
2045 - 2049 902,661 573,872 1,761,396
2050 - 2054 : 1,069,005 - 208,802 - 380,706
2055 - 2055 65,667 - 193,807
Total _ $ 15,291,835 $ 8,366,486 $ 19,713,226

NOTE 13 FUND BALANCE CLASSIFICATION

Fund balance is classified as nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned, and/or
- unassigned based primarily on the extent to which the Authority is bound to observe
constraints imposed upon the use of the resources in the General Fund.

Geﬁeral Fund

Nonspendable:
- Prepaid Expenditures , $ 35,042
Restricted: '
Homeless Support ‘ 639,442
Flex Savings . 9,290
Unassigned ' 3,065,103
Total Fund Balance : - $ 3748877

NOTE 14 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

A member of the board of directors leases property from the Authority. The Authority
recognized revenue of $5,400 for the year ended June 30, 2024, respectively.

The Fort Monroe Foundation reimburses the Authorlty for certain costs, the receivable
balance was $9,022 as of June 30, 2024. -
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FORT MONROE AUTHORITY
) (A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA)
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL — GENERAL FUND
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Variance With
‘ Final Budget
Budget - Positive
Original Final Actual {Negative)
REVENUES
Intergovernmental Revenues: : ' '
State $ 7377908 § 7,377,908 $ 7906499 § 528,51
Other Revenues _ - - 41,404 41,404
Total Revenues : 7,377,908 7,377,908 - 7,947,903 ~ 569,995
EXPENDITURES
Current Expenditures
Planning and Development 7,395,562 7,395,562 4,600,005 2,795,557
Capital Qutlay 410,400 410,400 1,318,685 {908,285)
Total Expendltures 7,805,962 7,805,962 5,918,690 1,887,272
Excess of Revenues _ : -
over Expenditures {428,054) {(428,054) 2,029,213 (2,457,287)
- OTHER FINANCING USES : _ '
Transfers Out : - . - (2,022,827) 2022827 -
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE _$ {428,054) § {428,054) % - 6386 % {434.440)

See accompanying Notes fo Required Supplementary Information.
()
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FORT MONROE AUTHORITY
__.. (A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA)
SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS - PENSION
VRS STATE EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLAN

- YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024
Contribution” Contribution as
in Relation to Employer's a Percentage
Contractually Contractually Coniribution Covered of Covered
Required . Required Deficiency - Employee Employee
Date . Contribution Contribution (Excess) Payroll Payroll
2024 - $ 271,536 § 271,536 § - $ 1,877,847 14.46%
2023 255,069 255,069 - , 1,760,469 14.49%
2022 298,661 298,661 - 1,714,199 17.42%
2021 . 225,475 ' 225,475 - 1,559,298 14.46%
2020 204,850 204,850 - 1,622,109 13.46%
2019 199,743 199,743 - 1,477,394 13.52%
2018 211,770 211,770 - 1,569,830 13.49%
2017 168,411 168,411 - 1,248,414 13.49%
2016 176,344 176,344 - 1,296,643 13.60%
2015 163,461 163,461 - . 1,353,818 12.07%

* Schedule is intended to show information for 10 years, when available.

- See accompanying Nofes to Required Supplementary Information.
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Health Insurance Credit Program:

Employer's Proportion of the Net CPEB
Liabllity

Employer's Proportionate Share of the

Net OPEB Liability

Employer's Covered Payroll
Emplayer's Proportionate Share of the

" Nest OPER Llabllity as a Percentage of
its Covered Payroll

Plan Fiduciary Met Posltion as a
Percentage of the Tota! OPEB Liability

Group Life Insurance Program:

Employer's Proportion of the Net OPEB
Llabifity

Employer's Proportionate Share of the

Net OPEB Liabllity

Employer's Covered Payroll

Employer's Proportionate Share of the

Net OPEB Liabllity a5 a Perceniage of

its Covered Payroll
Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a
Percentage of tho Total OPEB Liability

See accompanying Notes to Reguired Supplementary information.

FORT MONROE AUTHORITY
({A-COMPONENT UNIT OF THE COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA)
SCHEDULE OF AUTHORITY’S SHARE OF NET OPEB LIABILITIES (ASSETS)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Plan Year

2023 2022 2021 2029 2019 218 - 2017
0.02146% 0.02247% 0.02164% 0.02113% 0.02168% 0.02331% 0.01973% -
$ 176,320 $ 184088 $ 182758 § 193975 $ 200122 § 213,000 § 175,000
$ 1,760,480 % 1,714,199 § 1,559,208 § 1,522,108 § 1,477,394 § 1,569,830 § 1248414
10.02% 10.74% 11.72% 12.74% 13.56% 13.57% 14.34%
25,46% T 21.52% 19.75% 12.02% 10.56% 9.51% - 8.03%
0.00755% £.00788% 0.00755% 0.00740% 0.00753% 0.008256% 0.00891%
$ 90,5648 § 94,883 $l 87,803 $ 123,493 § 122533 § 125000 § 104,000
$ 1,780,469 $ 1714199 § 1,559,298 § 4,522,109 § 1,477,394 $ 1,569,830 § 1,248414
5.14% 5.54% 6.64% 8.11% 8.20% 7.96% 8.33%
69.30% 67.21% 67.46% 52.64% 52,00% 51.22% 48.86%
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FORT MONROE AUTHORITY

(A CDMPONENT UNIT OF THE COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA) =

SCHEDULE OF AUTHORITY’S SHARE OF NET OPEB LIABILITIES (ASSETS) (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024
Plan Year
2023 2022 2021 2020 2018 2018 2017
Disability Insurance Program: i
Employer’s Praportion of the Net OPEB )
-Asset 0.03475% 0.03698% 0.03608% 0.03513% 0.03650% 0.03981% 0.03380%
Employet's Proporfionate Share of the . . )

Net OPEB Assot § 109,768 100177 $. 124375 § 77528 § 71,611 & 89,000  § 70,000
Employer's Covered Payroll § 1760469 & 1,714,180 § 1,569298 § 1,522109 § 1,477,394 § 1,560,830 § 1,248,414
Employer's Proportionate Share of the .

Met OPEB Asset as a Percentage of .

lts Covered Payroll . ' 6.24% 6.40% 7.98% 5.09% 4.85% 5.67% 581%
Plan Fiduclary Net Posltion as a . ' .

Percentage of the Total OPER Asset 199.05% 195.90% 229.01% 181.88% 167.18% 194.74% 186.63%

State Health Plans Programs for
Pra-Medicare Refirees:
Emplayer's Proportion of the Collective .

QPER Liability 0.02261% 0.02386% 0.02294% 0.02372% 0.02641% 0.03014% 0.02230%
Employer's Proportionate Share of the : ‘ )

Collective OPEB Llabllly $ 79,683 § 86708 $ 102956 § 134948 § 179,301 - § 303,055 § 288,746
Employer's. Govered-Employea Payrol $ 1,760469 § 1,714,199 $ 1,569,208 § 1522108 § 1,477,304 - 1,569,830 § 1,248,414
Employer's Praporionate Share of the - L
Collective OPEB Liability as a

19.30%

Percentage of its Covered Payroll 4.52% 5.06% 6.60% 8.87% 12.14%
* Schedule Is intended to show Information for 10 years, when available.

Note: The amounts presented have a measurement date of the previous fiscal year-end.

See accompanying Noles to Required Supplamentary Information.
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FORT MONROE AUTHORITY
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA)
SCHEDULE OF AUTHORITY’S CONTRIBUTIONS - OPEB

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Contributions

in Relaticn to Contribution as
Contractually Contractually Confribution Employer's a Percentage
Required Required. Deficiency Covered of Covered
Date Contribution Contribution {Excess) ~ Payroli Payroll
HEALTH INSURANCE CREDIT PROGRAM _
- 2024 $ 21,032 § 21,032 § - 1,877,847 1.12%
2023 19,717 19,717 ' - 1,760,469 1.12%
2022 19,072 19,072 _ - 1,702,844 1.12%
2021 17,464 17,464 - 1,569,298 1.12%
2020 17,809 17,809 - 1,522,109 1.17%
2019 17,286 17,286 - : - 1,477,394 1.17%
2018 - 18,524 18,524 - 1,569,830 1.18%
GROUP LIFE INSURANCE PROGRAM o
2024 $ 10,140 § . 10,140 § - 1,877,847 0.54%
2023 9,599 - 9,699 - 1,777,503 0.54%
2022 9,257 9,257 - 1,714,199 0.54%
2021 8,420 8,420 - 1,552,298 0.54%
2020 7,915 7,915 - 1,522,109 0.52%
2019 7,682 7,682 - 1,477,394 0.52%
2018 8,163 8,163 - 1,569,830 0.52%
DISABILITY INSURANCE PROGRAM
2024 $ 11,455 % 11,455 - 1,877,847 0.61%
2023 10,739 10,739 - 1,777,503 0.60%
2022 10,387 10,387 - 1,702,844 0.61%
2021 9,512 9,512 - 1,559,298 0.61%
2020 9.437 9,437 ' - 1,522,109 0.62%
2019 9,180 9,160 - 1,477,394 0.62%
2018 10,361 10,361 - 1,569,830 0.66%

STATE HEALTH PLANS PROGRAMS FOR PRE-MEDICARE RETIREES

Contributions to this program are not based on covered payroll.

See accompanying Notes to Required Supplementary Information.
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NOTE 1

NOTE'2

FORT MONROE AUTHORITY
-{A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE COMMONWEAL.TH OF VIRGINIA) -
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
JUNE 30 2024

PENSION PLAN AND VRS OPEB PLANS

Changes in Benefit Terms
There have been no actuarially material changes to the System benefit provisions since the
prior actuarial valuation.

Changes of Assumptions

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2022, valuation were based on the resulis of
an actuarial experience study for the period from July 1, 20186, through June 30, 2020,
except the changes in the discount rate, which was based on VRS board action effective as
of July 1, 2021. Changes to the actuarial assumptions for the VRS -State Employee
Retirement Plan as a result of the experience study and VRS board action are as follows:

Mortality Rates (Pre-retirement, Updated to PUB2010 public sector mortality tables. For
postretirement healthy, and future mortality improvements, replace load with a
disabled) modified Mortality Improvement Scale MP-2020

Retirament Rates Adjusted rates to better fit experience for Plan 1; set

separate rates based on experience for Plan 2/Hybrid;
changed final retirement age from 75 to 80 for all

Withdrawal Rates Adjusted rates to better fit experience at each year age
' ' and setvice through 9 years of service

Disability Rates No change

Salary Scale . No change

Line of Duty Disability No change

Discount Rate . No change

DHRM OPER PLAN

Changes in Benefit Terms

There have been no actuarially materlal changes to the benefit provasmns since the prior
actuarial valuatlon

Changes of Assumptions
The following assumptions were.updated since the June 30 2022 valuation was based on
recent experience: _

» Spousal Coverage - rate remained at 20 percent
o Retiree Participation — rate remained at 35 percent

Retiree participation was based on a. blend of recent experience and the prior year
assumptions. :

The trend rates were updated based on economic conditions as of June 30, 2023,
Additionally, the discount rate was increased from 3.54% to 3.65% based on the Bond
Bu_yers GO 20 Municipal Bond Index as of June 30, 2023.
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FORT MONROE AUTHORITY :
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA)

“SCHEDULE OF PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT EXPENDITURES

GENERAL FUND
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Salaries and Wages
Employee Benefits
Architectural and Engineering Services
Legal Services
Management Services
Dues, Subscriptions, and Seminars
Fees - Banking and Payroll Processing
Miscellaneous .
DOffice Supplies and Postage
PILOT Fees
Public Information and Relafions Services
Public Programs Signage and Special Events
Security
Site Operating Costs
Telephone and Communications
Travel
Utllities and Trash Disposal
Total Planning and Development Expenditures

79)

$ 1,676,626
651,043
80,793
36,336
49,225
18,121
11,215
149,727
68,818
29,728
165,063
18,116
155,432
1,304 477
49,571
12,009
133,705

$ 4,600,005
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m CliftonLarsonAllen LLP
A CLAconnect.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Directors
Fort Monroe Authority
Fort Monroe, Virginia

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States and the Specifications for Audits of Authorities,
Boards, and Commissions, (the Specifications) issued by the Auditor of Public Accounts of the
Commonwealth of Virginia, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities and each major fund of Fort Monroe Authority, a component unit of the Commonwealth of
Virginia, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2024, and the related notes to the financial statements,
which collectively comprise the Fort Monroe Authority’s basic financial statements, and have issued our
report thereon dated September 19, 2024.

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Fort Monroe Autharity’s
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Fort Monroe
Authority's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Fort
Monroe Authority’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material -
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified.

I Ses CLAglobal.com/disclaimer
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Board of Directors
Fort Monroe Authority

" Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Fort Monroe Authority’s financial statements
are free. from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, nancompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards or the Specifications.

Purpose of This Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

Arlington, Virginia
September 19, 2024
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Finance Report
Fort Monroe Authority Finance Committee Meeting
Fort Monroe Visitor and Education Center
November 14, 2024, 12:00 pm

Cash on Deposit

As of the close of business on November 5, 2024, the Fort Monroe Authority had on
deposit at Old Point National Bank, the following account balances:

Unrestricted Accounts

Government Fund Operating Account $4,981,341
Enterprise Fund Residential Operating Account 2,277,907
Enterprise Fund Special Events Account 37,599
Enterprise Fund Utility Operating Account 139,203
Total Unrestricted $ 7,436,050
Restricted Accounts

Enterprise Fund Residential Security Deposit Account $276,564
NPS for Jamestown Island Exhibit 205,247
Net Balance of SLFRF transfers for African Landing Memorial 165,013
African Landing Memorial Supplemental Funding 2,500,000
Surplus Furniture Sales Proceeds 2,027
Greater Virginia Peninsula Homelessness Consortium 428,000
Interest Earnings from Overnight Investments 38,813
Flexible Spending Account 6,747
Total Restricted $3,622,411

In June 2024, the FMA began using overnight sweep investment accounts to generate
interest income for account balances above the compensating balance requirements to
avoid banking account fees. Accumulated interest income for restricted accounts since
the beginning of the program is shown as a consolidated account balance.

FMA management believes that the current cash balances together with the remaining
general fund transfers and business revenue will provide enough funding to meet the
near-term operating requirements of the Fort Monroe Authority.

FY26 Capital Budget Requests

The $50M in FY25 capital project funding was allocated to the $32.9M Ingalls Road
utility master plan improvements and the $12.3M surface and structured parking
projects to support Ingalls Road sites 3 and 4 and the future marina redevelopments.
The FMA has reserved the balance of the funds to be used for future project pre-
planning, if permitted, or for cost increases to the two capital projects listed above.



Finance Report

FMA Finance Committee Meeting
November 14, 2024
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To accelerate the next phase of utility and infrastructure upgrades, the FMA submitted a
$50M capital budget request for FY26. The FMA plans to use the funds to complete the
front entrance phase 2 project, the North Gate Smart Scale Trail 757 project and the
utility master plan projects for the balance of North Gate and the Inner Fort upgrades.

The FMA also submitted two language-only requests. The first would authorize the FMA
to act as its own fiscal agent for the $50M of general fund capital project funding in
FY25 and any future general fund capital project funding. The second request would
allow the FMA to utilize up to 10% of the $50M in FY25 funding for pre-planning
purposes so the FMA could begin the preliminary engineering for the North Gate and
Inner Fort utility master plan projects without having to wait for additional
appropriations.

FY25 Fiscal Year-to-Date Financial Statements

The financial statements accompanying this report reflect the Authority’s Statement of
Net Position as of September 30, 2024, and Statement of Activities for the three-month
period ended September 30, 2024.

The FY24 year-end audit entries for pension and OPEB liabilities and deferred inflows
and outflows of resources related to GASB 68 and GASB 75 requirements have been
posted. The lease receivables and deferred inflows required under GASB 87 have been
updated at fiscal year-end.

As part of the FY24 audit process, Clifton Larsen Allen recommended the elimination of
the interfund due to/due from balances between funds. Audit adjusting entries were
posted at year-end to eliminate all accumulated interfund balances. For FY25 and future
fiscal years, the transfers between funds will be recorded as transfer expenses at fiscal
year-end.

A brief narrative summary of the statements is provided below. Copies of the summary
financial statements are included with this report.

Statement of Net Position as of September 30, 2024

Assets

As of September 30, 2024, the Authority had $6,690,264 in operating and petty cash
funds compared to $6,029,503 in the prior year.

As of the same date, the Authority had $3,605,314 in restricted cash which consists
of $275,201 in resident security deposits, $428,000 in trust fund accounts for
GVPHC homeless support services, $205,247 in restricted funds for the cost sharing
of the future African Landing exhibit at Jamestown Island, and $165,013 in
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unexpended SLFRF transfers for the African Landing Memorial project, and
$2,500,000 for the African Landing Memorial. The restricted fund balance includes
$38,813 in interest earnings to date since the June 2024 implementation of the
overnight sweep investment accounts.

As of September 30, 2024, Total Current Assets were $28,915,210 compared to
$21,380,439 in the prior year. A significant portion of Other Current Assets reflects
the net present value of the future lease payments required by GASB 87 for lease
accounting. The net present value of all future lease payments totaled $17,464,240
as of September 30, 2024, and $13,155,178 as of September 30, 2023. For
comparison purposes, eliminating the impact of the GASB 87 current asset, Total
Current Assets as of September 30, 2024 would be $11,450,970 compared to
$8,225,262 for the prior year. The significant increase in Current Assets results from
the receipt of the $2,500,000 in supplemental funding for the African Landing
Memorial in June 2024.

Total Fixed Assets (net of depreciation) as of September 30, 2024 totaled
$1,110,111 compared to $787,917 in the prior fiscal year. The increase in Fixed
Assets largely results from the Construction in Progress for the African Landing
Memorial which is funded by transfers from the $6M ARPA SLFRF allocation.

Total Assets as of September 30, 2024 were $30,744,076 compared to $22,806,684
as of September 30, 2023. Both years reflect Deferred Outflows of Resources related
to the Pension and OPEB requirements of GASB 68 and GASB 75. After eliminating
the GASB lease receivables and Deferred Outflows for comparison purposes, Total
Assets would be $12,561,113 as of September 30, 2024 and $9,013,240 as of
September 30, 2023.

Liabilities

Total Current Liabilities as of September 30, 2024 totaled $4,496,246 compared to
$2,336,830 in the prior year. Other Current Liabilities includes $2,696,247 in
deferred revenue liability for the $2,500,000 supplemental funding from the
Commonwealth and unexpended SLFRF transfers. This balance of the deferred
revenue will be recognized as income as the funds are expended for the African
Landing Memorial artwork and site improvements.

Other Liabilities include Deferred Inflow of Resources related to GASB 68 pension
reporting, GASB 75 OPEB reporting, and GASB 87 lease accounting as well the GASB
68 Net Pension Liability and GASB 75 Net OPEB Liability. As of September 30, 2024
Deferred Inflows totaled $16,690,656 compared to $13,085,508 in the previous
fiscal year. The Net Pension Liability and Net OPEB Liability reflect the updated
year-end FY24 balances.
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Total Liabilities were $23,271,360 as of September 30, 2024 compared to
$17,428,636 as of September 30, 2023. Eliminating the GASB 68, GASB 75, and GASB
87 balances for comparison purposes, as of September 30, 2024, Total Liabilities
would be $4,496,246 compared to $2,336,830 as of September 30, 2023.

The FMA has no outstanding loans payable as of September 30, 2024.

Net Position

As of September 30, 2024, Total Net Position was $7,472,717 compared to
$5,378,048 for the prior year.

Statement of Activities for Three Month Period - July 1, 2024 to September 30, 2024

Revenue

Consolidated revenue for the first three months of the fiscal year totaled $3,989,758
compared to $3,550,321 (+12.4%) for the same period of the prior year and
$4,094,941 (-2.6%) in pro-rated budgeted revenue.

e Government Fund appropriations for the three-month period were
$1,948,316, which is $298,978 (+18.1%) above prior year due to the
additional FY25 appropriations to offset the salary increases approved in the
FY24 budget, but $19,819 (-1.0%) below budgeted revenue due to the delay
in distribution of other central appropriations.

e VDOT Maintenance Funds passed through from the City totaled $124,315 for
first three months of the fiscal year compared to $120,994 in the prior year.

e Residential rental revenue and fees for the first three months of the fiscal
year totaled $892,207, which is above the prior year by 0.8% but 1.4% below
budgeted revenue due to credit balance in miscellaneous revenue.

e Commercial rental revenue and fees for the first three months of the fiscal
year totaled $516,758, which is above the prior year by 30.2% and 1.9%

above budgeted revenue.

e Venue Rentals and Event revenue for the period is 5.5% below the same
period last year and below budgeted revenue by 65.6%.

e Utility Fund billings are below prior year by 2.2% but above budget by 0.8%.
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Expenses

Consolidated operating expenses for the first three months of the fiscal year were
$3,345,663 compared to $3,135,985 in the prior year (6.7% above prior year) and
$4,094,942 in budgeted expenses (18.3% below budget).

Government Fund operating expenses for the first three months of the fiscal
year were $1,316,598, above prior year expenditures of $1,224,961 by 7.5%,
but below budgeted expenses of $1,833,724 by 28.21%. Some of the variance
against budget ($176K) results from the continuing personnel vacancies that
have been challenging to fill due to the tight labor market for high demand
positions (Project Manager) and low supply positions (Manager of
Preservation Trades, 2 Preservation Technicians) combined with the delay in
rehiring positions in other departments to focus on recruitment of the above
positions. This variance is below prior year due to some positions being filled
in FY24. The FMA continues to have success in recruiting vacant positions
but at a slower rate the reflected in the budget.

Consolidated Enterprise Fund operating expenses for the first three months
of the fiscal year totaled $2,029,066, a 6.2% increase compared to $1,911,024
for the prior year, but 10.3% below budgeted expenses of $2,261,152.

Net Operating Surplus/Deficit

On a consolidated basis, revenue exceeded expenses for the first three months of the
fiscal year by $644,094 compared to an operating surplus of $414,336 for the last
fiscal year. The increased surplus resulted from increased operating surplus in the
government fund combined with the lower consolidated deficit in the enterprise
fund as more fully described below.

Government Fund revenue exceeded expenses for the first three months of
the fiscal year, resulting in an operating surplus of $785,769 for the current
year compared to an operating surplus of $554,061 in the prior year and
$350,017 in budgeted operating surplus.

Consolidated Enterprise Fund expenses exceeded revenue for the first three
months of the fiscal year resulting in an operating deficit of $141,675 for the
first three months of the fiscal year compared to an operating deficit of
$139,726 for the prior year and $350,017 in budgeted operating deficit.



Fort Monroe Authority

Statement of Activities - Consolidated (All Funds)

Accrual Basis - Internal Unaudited

Revenue

General Fund Appropriations

Other Grant Reimbursements

VDOT Maintenance Funds from Hampton
Casemate Revenue & Fees

Residential Rental Income & Fees
Commercial Rental Income & Fees
Special Event Income & Fees

Utility Fund Revenue & Fees

Miscellaneous Revenue

Total Revenue

Expenses

Payroll & Fringe Benefit Expenses
Salaries and Wages
Fringe Benefits

Total Payroll & Fringe Benefit Expenses

Administrative Expenses

Advertising, Marketing & Public Relations
Architectural & Engineering

Contracted Services

Data & Telecommunications
Depreciation & Amortization

Event Expenses

Furniture, Fixtures & Equipment
Insurance

Legal & Accounting

Management Fees & Related Expenses
Memberships & Publications

Office and Other Supplies

Pension and Post-Employment Benefits
PILOT Fee & Other Taxes

Printing Services

Repair & Maintenance - Contracts
Repair & Maintenance - Supplies
Security Patrolling

Storm-Related Damages

Tenant Improvements & Leasing Commissions
Training, Conferences & Seminars
Transfer Expense

Utility & Public Works Expenses
Vehicles & Small Tools

VDOT Maintenance Expenses

Total Expense

Surplus/(Shortfall)

Sept 1, 2024 - Sept 1, 2023 - Prorated
Sept 30, 2024 Sept 30, 2023 $ Change Budget $ Change
1,948,316 1,649,338 298,978 1,968,135 (19,819)
2,565 2,370 195 111,257 (108,692)
124,315 120,995 3,321 102,600 21,715
572 2,309 (1,737) 1,750 (1,178)
894,673 887,003 7,671 897,032 (2,359)
516,758 396,768 119,990 507,317 9,441
12,250 11,860 390 37,500 (25,250)
465,508 475,833 (10,325) 461,782 3,726
24,800 3,845 20,955 7,569 17,231
3,989,758 3,550,321 439,437 4,094,941 (105,184)
511,571 447,184 64,387 673,676 (162,106)
235,603 192,584 43,020 266,459 (30,856)
747,174 639,768 107,407 940,136 (192,961)
8,481 7,647 833 34,601 (26,120)
26,894 31,775 (4,880) 71,863 (44,968)
46,849 36,126 10,723 44,438 2,411
297,613 221,669 75,944 394,231 (96,618)
57,196 44,439 12,758 41,709 15,487
12,465 11,917 548 - 12,465
4,639 5,187 (548) 8,375 (3,736)
24,051 23,208 844 56,132 (32,081)
64,763 65,135 (371) 65,838 (1,074)
21,420 18,445 2,975 32,150 (10,730)
81,877 87,012 (5,135) 85,356 (3,479)
2,869 2,454 414 7,300 (4,431)
7,302 7,514 (211) 8,846 (1,544)
55,966 27,793 28,173 - 55,966
214,295 273,339 (59,044) 239,252 (24,957)
5,608 2,826 2,782 4,275 1,333
297,891 278,015 19,876 248,580 49,311
18,768 84,876 (66,108) 22,887 (4,119)
44,579 37,648 6,930 54,667 (10,088)
- (30) 30 24,200 (24,200)
2,506 1,568 938 17,837 (15,330)
50 - 50 - 50
1,287,341 1,153,521 133,819 1,588,223 (300,882)
3,491 7,858 (4,366) 1,450 2,041
11,575 66,277 (54,702) 102,600 (91,025)
3,345,663 3,135,985 209,679 4,094,942 (749,278)
644,094 414,336 229,758 (0) 644,095
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Fort Monroe Authority

Statement of Activities - Government Fund (All Sub-Funds)

Accrual Basis - Internal Unaudited

Revenue
General Fund Appropriations

Other Grant Reimbursements

VDOT Maintenance Funds from Hampton

Casemate Revenue & Fees
Residential Rental Income & Fees
Commercial Rental Income & Fees
Special Event Income & Fees
Utility Fund Revenue & Fees
Miscellaneous Revenue

Total Revenue

Expenses
Payroll & Fringe Benefit Expenses
Salaries and Wages

Fringe Benefits

Total Payroll & Fringe Benefit Expenses

Administrative Expenses

Advertising, Marketing & Public Relations

Architectural & Engineering
Contracted Services

Data & Telecommunications
Depreciation & Amortization

Event Expenses

Furniture, Fixtures & Equipment
Insurance

Legal & Accounting

Management Fees & Related Expenses
Memberships & Publications

Office and Other Supplies

Pension and Post-Employment Benefits

PILOT Fee & Other Taxes
Printing Services

Repair & Maintenance - Contracts
Repair & Maintenance - Supplies
Security Patrolling

Storm-Related Damages

Tenant Improvements & Leasing Commissions

Training, Conferences & Seminars

Transfer Expenses

Utility & Public Works Expenses

Vehicles & Small Tools

VDOT Maintenance Expenses
Total Expense

Surplus/(Shortfall)

Sept 1, 2024 - Sept 1, 2023 - Prorated
Sept 30, 2024 Sept 30, 2023 $ Change Budget $ Change
1,948,316 1,649,338 298,978 1,968,135 (19,819)
2,565 2,370 195 111,257 (108,692)
124,315 120,995 3,321 102,600 21,715
572 2,309 (1,737) 1,750 (1,178)
26,599 4,011 22,588 - 26,599
2,102,367 1,779,022 323,345 2,183,741 (81,374)
443,076 375,405 67,670 587,965 (144,890)
201,352 155,868 45,484 232,632 (31,280)
644,428 531,273 113,155 820,597 (176,169)
7,349 6,119 1,231 33,075 (25,726)
25,727 31,321 (5,594) 69,838 (44,111)
46,849 36,126 10,723 44,438 2,411
23,831 5,161 18,670 67,670 (43,839)
38,794 36,687 2,106 34,520 4,273
469 1,377 (908) 875 (406)
25,672 2,709 22,962 36,650 (10,978)
4,541 5,684 (1,143) 6,763 (2,221)
21,420 18,445 2,975 31,250 (9,830)
2,869 2,454 414 7,300 (4,431)
5,229 7,079 (1,851) 7,258 (2,029)
55,966 27,793 28,173 - 55,966
10,977 4,906 6,071 7,081 3,896
4,709 2,433 2,277 4,275 434
(5,149) 35,573 (40,722) 31,575 (36,724)
44,579 37,648 6,930 54,667 (10,088)
2,301 1,227 1,073 17,127 (14,826)
(9,002) - (9,002) -

350,716 358,322 (7,607) 456,167 (105,451)
2,750 6,345 (3,595) - 2,750
11,575 66,277 (54,702) 102,600 (91,025)
1,316,598 1,224,961 91,637 1,833,724 (517,127)
785,769 554,061 231,708 350,017 435,752
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Fort Monroe Authority
Statement of Activities - Government Fund (MEI Sub-Fund)

Accrual Basis - Internal Unaudited Sept 1,2024 - Sept 1, 2023 - Prorated
Sept 30, 2024  Sept 30, 2023 $ Change Budget $ Change

Revenue
General Fund Appropriations - - - - -
Other Grant Reimbursements - - - - -
VDOT Maintenance Funds from Hampton - - - - -
Casemate Revenue & Fees 572 2,309 (1,737) 1,750 (1,178)
Residential Rental Income & Fees - - - - -
Commercial Rental Income & Fees - - - - -
Special Event Income & Fees - - - - -

Utility Fund Revenue & Fees - - - - -

Miscellaneous Revenue - 20 (20) - -
Total Revenue 572 2,329 (1,757) 1,750 (1,178)
Expenses

Payroll & Fringe Benefit Expenses

Salaries and Wages 110,189 84,183 26,006 139,828 (29,639)

Fringe Benefits 73,051 34,369 38,682 54,523 18,528
Total Payroll & Fringe Benefit Expenses 183,240 118,552 64,688 194,351 (11,111)
Administrative Expenses 1,394 1,713 (318) 2,950 (1,556)
Advertising, Marketing & Public Relations 149 12,887 (12,738) 6,900 (6,751)
Architectural & Engineering - - - - -
Contracted Services 25,566 831 24,735 45,800 (20,234)
Data & Telecommunications 3,105 2,307 798 2,998 107
Depreciation & Amortization - - - - -
Event Expenses - 104 (104) 875 (875)
Furniture, Fixtures & Equipment 7,409 2,965 4,443 26,075 (18,666)
Insurance 1,188 1,782 (594) 1,775 (587)
Legal & Accounting - - - - -
Management Fees & Related Expenses - 425 (425) - -
Memberships & Publications 1,102 612 490 1,500 (398)
Office and Other Supplies 2,040 572 1,468 2,500 (460)
Pension and Post-Employment Benefits - - - - -
PILOT Fee & Other Taxes 1,840 822 1,018 1,187 653
Printing Services 4,291 698 3,593 2,125 2,166
Repair & Maintenance - Contracts 15,477 1,558 13,919 20,850 (5,373)
Repair & Maintenance - Supplies (20,133) 20,795 (40,928) - (20,133)
Security Patrolling 6,186 872 5,314 - 6,186

Storm-Related Damages - - - - -

Tenant Improvements & Leasing Commissions - - - - -

Training, Conferences & Seminars 621 567 54 2,125 (1,504)
Transfer Expenses - - - -
Utility & Public Works Expenses 11,715 21,634 (9,919) 21,302 (9,587)
Vehicles & Small Tools 520 2,999 (2,478) - 520
VDOT Maintenance Expenses - - - - -
Total Expense 245,709 192,694 53,015 333,313 (87,604)
Surplus/(Shortfall) (245,137) (190,365) (54,772) (331,563) 86,426
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Fort Monroe Authority
Statement of Activities - Enterprise Fund (All Sub-Funds)

Accrual Basis - Internal Unaudited Sept 1, 2024 - Sept 1, 2023 - Prorated
Sept 30, 2024 Sept 30, 2023 $ Change Budget $ Change

Revenue
General Fund Appropriations - - - - -
Other Grant Reimbursements - - - - -
VDOT Maintenance Funds from Hampton - - - - -

Casemate Revenue & Fees - - - - -

Residential Rental Income & Fees 894,673 887,003 7,671 897,032 (2,359)

Commercial Rental Income & Fees 516,758 396,768 119,990 507,317 9,441

Special Event Income & Fees 12,250 11,860 390 37,500 (25,250)

Utility Fund Revenue & Fees 465,508 475,833 (10,325) 461,782 3,726

Miscellaneous Revenue (1,799) (166) (1,633) 7,569 (9,368)
Total Revenue 1,887,391 1,771,298 116,092 1,911,200 (23,809)
Expenses

Payroll & Fringe Benefit Expenses

Salaries and Wages 68,495 71,778 (3,283) 85,711 (17,216)

Fringe Benefits 34,251 36,716 (2,465) 33,828 424
Total Payroll & Fringe Benefit Expenses 102,746 108,494 (5,748) 119,538 (16,792)
Administrative Expenses 1,131 1,529 (397) 1,526 (395)
Advertising, Marketing & Public Relations 1,168 454 714 2,025 (858)
Architectural & Engineering - - - - -
Contracted Services 273,782 216,508 57,274 326,561 (52,779)
Data & Telecommunications 18,402 7,751 10,651 7,189 11,213
Depreciation & Amortization 12,465 11,917 548 - 12,465
Event Expenses 4170 3,811 359 7,500 (3,330)
Furniture, Fixtures & Equipment (1,620) 20,499 (22,119) 19,482 (21,102)
Insurance 60,222 59,451 771 59,075 1,147
Legal & Accounting - - - 900 (900)
Management Fees & Related Expenses 81,877 87,012 (5,135) 85,356 (3,479)
Memberships & Publications - - - - -
Office and Other Supplies 2,073 434 1,639 1,588 486
Pension and Post-Employment Benefits - - - - -
PILOT Fee & Other Taxes 203,318 268,433 (65,116) 232,171 (28,853)
Printing Services 899 393 506 - 899
Repair & Maintenance - Contracts 303,040 242,442 60,598 217,005 86,035
Repair & Maintenance - Supplies 18,768 84,876 (66,108) 22,887 (4,119)

Security Patrolling - - - - -

Storm-Related Damages - - - - -

Tenant Improvements & Leasing Commissions - (30) 30 24,200 (24,200)
Training, Conferences & Seminars 206 341 (135) 710 (504)
Transfer Expense 9,052 - 9,052 - 9,052
Utility & Public Works Expenses 936,625 795,199 141,426 1,132,056 (195,431)
Vehicles & Small Tools 741 1,512 (771) 1,450 (709)
VDOT Maintenance Expenses - - - - -
Total Expense 2,029,066 1,911,024 118,042 2,261,217 (232,152)
Surplus/(Shortfall) (141,675) (139,726) (1,949) (350,017) 208,342
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Fort Monroe Authority
Statement of Activities - Enterprise Fund (Residential Real Estate Sub-Fund)

Accrual Basis - Internal Unaudited Sept 1,2024 - Sept 1, 2023 - Prorated
Sept 30, 2024  Sept 30, 2023 $ Change Budget $ Change

Revenue
General Fund Appropriations - - - - -
OEA Grant Reimbursements - - - - -
Other Grant Reimbursements - - - - -
VDOT Maintenance Funds from Hampton - - - - -
Casemate Revenue & Fees - - - - -
Residential Rental Income & Fees 894,673 887,003 7,671 897,032 (2,359)
Commercial Rental Income & Fees - - - - -
Special Event Income & Fees - - - - -

Utility Fund Revenue & Fees - - - - -

Miscellaneous Revenue (2,467) (1,981) (486) 7,569 (10,036)
Total Revenue 892,207 885,022 7,185 904,602 (12,395)
Expenses

Payroll & Fringe Benefit Expenses

Salaries and Wages 65,969 69,273 (3,305) 81,613 (15,645)

Fringe Benefits 34,021 36,502 (2,481) 33,456 565
Total Payroll & Fringe Benefit Expenses 99,990 105,775 (5,785) 115,070 (15,080)
Administrative Expenses 386 236 150 450 (64)
Advertising, Marketing & Public Relations 830 - 830 25 805
Architectural & Engineering - - - - -
Contracted Services 66,907 30,141 36,766 94,398 (27,490)
Data & Telecommunications 16,222 5,720 10,501 1,659 14,563

Depreciation & Amortization - - - - -

Event Expenses - - - - -

Furniture, Fixtures & Equipment (1,620) 20,499 (22,119) 15,882 (17,502)
Insurance 16,825 16,825 - 16,825 0
Legal & Accounting - - - 900 (900)

Management Fees & Related Expenses - - - - -

Memberships & Publications - - - - -

Office and Other Supplies - 129 (129) 1,100 (1,100)
Pension and Post-Employment Benefits - - - - -

PILOT Fee & Other Taxes 120,048 53,040 67,009 80,592 39,457
Printing Services 899 324 575 - 899
Repair & Maintenance - Contracts 69,235 99,109 (29,874) 107,375 (38,140)
Repair & Maintenance - Supplies 8,949 28,819 (19,871) 20,962 (12,013)

Security Patrolling - - - - -

Storm-Related Damages - - - - -

Tenant Improvements & Leasing Commissions - - - 12,500 (12,500)
Training, Conferences & Seminars 71 206 (135) 500 (429)
Transfer Expenses 6,405 - 6,405 -
Utility & Public Works Expenses 123,867 180,273 (56,406) 166,676 (42,808)
Vehicles & Small Tools 741 934 (193) 925 (184)
VDOT Maintenance Expenses - - - - -
Total Expense 529,755 542,032 (12,277) 635,837 (106,081)
Surplus/(Shortfall) 362,451 342,990 19,461 268,765 93,686
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Accrual Basis - Internal Unaudited

Revenue

General Fund Appropriations

Other Grant Reimbursements

VDOT Maintenance Funds from Hampton
Casemate Revenue & Fees

Residential Rental Income & Fees
Commercial Rental Income & Fees
Special Event Income & Fees

Utility Fund Revenue & Fees

Miscellaneous Revenue

Total Revenue

Expenses

Payroll & Fringe Benefit Expenses
Salaries and Wages
Fringe Benefits

Total Payroll & Fringe Benefit Expenses

Administrative Expenses

Advertising, Marketing & Public Relations
Architectural & Engineering

Contracted Services

Data & Telecommunications
Depreciation & Amortization

Event Expenses

Furniture, Fixtures & Equipment
Insurance

Legal & Accounting

Management Fees & Related Expenses
Memberships & Publications

Office and Other Supplies

Pension and Post-Employment Benefits
PILOT Fee & Other Taxes

Printing Services

Repair & Maintenance - Contracts
Repair & Maintenance - Supplies
Security Patrolling

Storm-Related Damages

Tenant Improvements & Leasing Commissions
Training, Conferences & Seminars
Transfer Expenses

Utility & Public Works Expenses
Vehicles & Small Tools

VDOT Maintenance Expenses

Total Expense

Surplus/(Shortfall)

Fort Monroe Authority
Statement of Activities - Enterprise Fund (Commercial Real Estate Sub-Fund)

Sept 1,2024 - Sept 1, 2023 - Prorated
Sept 30,2024  Sept 30, 2023 $ Change Budget $ Change
516,758 396,768 119,990 507,317 9,441
516,758 396,768 119,990 507,317 9,441
175 381 (206) 51 124
206,075 184,542 21,533 227,663 (21,588)
1,141 1,645 (505) 5,055 (3,914)
12,465 11,917 548 - 12,465
- - - 450 (450)
42,296 40,975 1,321 40,980 1,316
81,877 87,012 (5,135) 85,356 (3,479)
1,843 (25) 1,868 300 1,543
76,039 213,406 (137,366) 147,150 (71,111)
233,805 143,706 90,099 109,005 124,800
9,819 56,056 (46,237) 1,800 8,019
- (30) 30 11,700 (11,700)
- - - 210 (210)
239 - 239 -
209,992 206,912 3,080 211,683 (1,690)
- 578 (578) 525 (525)
875,767 947,074 (71,308) 841,927 33,839
(359,009) (550,306) 191,297 (334,611) (24,398)
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Fort Monroe Authority

Statement of Activities - Enterprise Fund (Venue Rentals and Events Sub-Fund)

Accrual Basis - Internal Unaudited

Revenue
General Fund Appropriations
Other Grant Reimbursements
VDOT Maintenance Funds from Hampton
Casemate Revenue & Fees
Residential Rental Income & Fees
Commercial Rental Income & Fees
Special Event Income & Fees
Utility Fund Revenue & Fees
Miscellaneous Revenue

Total Revenue

Expenses
Payroll & Fringe Benefit Expenses
Salaries and Wages
Fringe Benefits

Total Payroll & Fringe Benefit Expenses

Administrative Expenses
Advertising, Marketing & Public Relations
Architectural & Engineering
Contracted Services
Data & Telecommunications
Depreciation & Amortization
Event Expenses
Furniture, Fixtures & Equipment
Insurance
Legal & Accounting
Management Fees & Related Expenses
Memberships & Publications
Office and Other Supplies
Pension and Post-Employment Benefits
PILOT Fee & Other Taxes
Printing Services
Repair & Maintenance - Contracts
Repair & Maintenance - Supplies
Security Patrolling
Storm-Related Damages
Tenant Improvements & Leasing Commissions
Training, Conferences & Seminars
Transfer Expenses
Utility & Public Works Expenses
Vehicles & Small Tools
VDOT Maintenance Expenses

Total Expense

Surplus/(Shortfall)

Sept 1, 2024 - Sept 1, 2023 - Prorated
Sept 30, 2024 Sept 30, 2023 $ Change Budget $ Change
12,250 11,860 390 37,500 (25,250)
668 1,815 (1,147) - 668
12,918 13,675 (757) 37,500 (24,582)
2,527 2,505 22 4,097 (1,571)
230 214 16 371 (142)
2,756 2,719 37 4,469 (1,712)
571 912 (341) 1,025 (455)
338 454 (116) 2,000 (1,663)
800 1,825 (1,025) 4,500 (3,700)
1,040 385 655 475 565
4,170 3,811 359 7,500 (3,330)
- - - 3,150 (3,150)
705 1,057 (352) 675 30
231 330 (99) 125 106
7,230 1,988 5,242 4,429 2,800
- 69 (69) - -
- (374) 374 625 (625)
- - - 125 (125)
135 135 - - 135
2,408 - 2,408 -
1,949 1,861 88 2,750 (801)
22,331 15,170 7,161 31,848 (9,517)
(9,413) (1,495) (7,918) 5,652 (15,065)
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Fort Monroe Authority
Statement of Activities - Enterprise Fund (Utility Operation Sub-Fund)

Accrual Basis - Internal Unaudited Sept 1,2024 - Sept 1, 2023 - Prorated
Sept 30,2024  Sept 30, 2023 $ Change Budget $ Change

Revenue
General Fund Appropriations - - - - -
Other Grant Reimbursements - - - - -
VDOT Maintenance Funds from Hampton - - - - -
Casemate Revenue & Fees - - - - -
Residential Rental Income & Fees - - - - -
Commercial Rental Income & Fees - - - - -

Special Event Income & Fees - - - - -

Utility Fund Revenue & Fees 465,508 475,833 (10,325) 461,782 3,726

Miscellaneous Revenue - - - - -
Total Revenue 465,508 475,833 (10,325) 461,782 3,726
Expenses

Payroll & Fringe Benefit Expenses
Salaries and Wages - - - - -

Fringe Benefits - - - - -

Total Payroll & Fringe Benefit Expenses - - - - -

Administrative Expenses - - - - -
Advertising, Marketing & Public Relations - - - - -
Architectural & Engineering - - - - -
Contracted Services - - - - -
Data & Telecommunications - - - - -
Depreciation & Amortization - - - - -
Event Expenses - - - - -
Furniture, Fixtures & Equipment - - - - -
Insurance 396 594 (198) 595 (199)
Legal & Accounting - - - - -
Management Fees & Related Expenses - - - - -
Memberships & Publications - - - - -
Office and Other Supplies - - - 63 (63)
Pension and Post-Employment Benefits - - - - -
PILOT Fee & Other Taxes - - - - -
Printing Services - - - - -
Repair & Maintenance - Contracts - - - - -
Repair & Maintenance - Supplies - - - - -
Security Patrolling - - - - -
Storm-Related Damages - - - - -
Tenant Improvements & Leasing Commissions - - - - -
Training, Conferences & Seminars - - - - -
Transfer Expenses - - - -
Utility & Public Works Expenses 600,817 406,153 194,663 750,948 (150,131)
Vehicles & Small Tools - - - - -
VDOT Maintenance Expenses - - - - -
Total Expense 601,212 406,747 194,465 751,605 (150,393)
Surplus/(Shortfall) (135,704) 69,086 (204,790) (289,823) 154,119
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Fort Monroe Authority
Statement of Net Position - Consolidated (All Funds)

Accrual Basis - Internal Unaudited

Sept 30, 2024 Sept 30, 2023 $ Change % Change
ASSETS
Current Assets
Checking/Savings
Operating Account & Petty Cash 6,690,264 6,029,503 660,761 11.0%
Restricted Cash Account 3,605,314 1,130,557 2,474,757 218.9%
Other Cash Equivalents 6,621 9,662 (3,041) -31.5%
Total Checking/Savings 10,302,199 7,169,722 3,132,477 43.7%
Accounts Receivable
Accounts Receivable 712,763 440,689 272,074 61.7%
Other Receivables 64,925 105,569 (40,643) -38.5%
Total Accounts Receivable 777,688 546,258 231,430 42.4%
Other Current Assets
Prepaid Expenses 215,892 351,688 (135,796) -38.6%
Other Current Assets 17,619,430 13,312,771 4,306,659 32.4%
Total Other Current Assets 17,835,323 13,664,460 4,170,863 30.5%
Total Current Assets 28,915,210 21,380,439 7,534,771 35.2%
Fixed Assets
Electronic Equipment 107,942 119,451 (11,510) -9.6%
Office Furniture and Equipment - 74,444 (74,444) -100.0%
Motor Vehicles 96,882 143,701 (46,819) -32.6%
Museum Artifacts 59,705 59,705 - 0.0%
Non-Capitalized Building Renovations 473,518 462,184 11,334 2.5%
Construction in Progress 670,697 369,190 301,507 81.7%
Accumulated Depreciation (298,634) (440,759) 142,125 32.2%
Total Fixed Assets 1,110,111 787,917 322,194 40.9%
Other Assets
Due From Intercompany - - - 0.0%
Deferred Outflow of Resources 718,723 638,266 80,457 12.6%
Other Assets 33 62 (30) -47.5%
Total Other Assets 718,756 638,328 80,427 12.6%
TOTAL ASSETS 30,744,076 22,806,684 7,937,392 34.8%
LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable 381,345 129,967 251,377 193.4%
Accrued Liabilities 628,443 1,286,697 (658,254) -51.2%
Accrued Leave Payable 196,237 144,334 51,902 36.0%
Other Current Liabilities 3,290,222 775,832 2,514,390 324.1%
Total Current Liabilities 4,496,246 2,336,830 2,159,416 92.4%
Other Liabilities
Due To Intercompany - - - 0.0%
Loans Payable - - - 0.0%
Deferred Inflow of Resources 16,690,656 13,085,508 3,605,148 27.6%
Net Pension Liability 1,738,007 1,640,639 97,368 5.9%
Net OPEB Liability 346,451 365,659 (19,208) -5.3%
Total Other Liabilities 18,775,114 15,091,806 3,683,308 24.4%
Total Liabilities 23,271,360 17,428,636 5,842,724 33.5%
Equity
Retained Earnings 6,828,622 4,963,712 1,864,910 37.6%
Net Income 644,094 414,336 229,758 55.5%
Total Equity 7,472,717 5,378,048 2,094,668 38.9%
TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 30,744,076 22,806,684 7,937,392 34.8%

NOTE: For presentation purposes, intercompany due to/from accounts have been eliminated Page 1



Fort Monroe Authority
Statement of Net Position - Government Fund (All Sub-Funds)

Accrual Basis - Internal Unaudited

Sept 30, 2024 Sept 30, 2023 $ Change % Change
ASSETS
Current Assets
Checking/Savings
Operating Account & Petty Cash 4,031,872 3,998,524 33,347 0.8%
Restricted Cash Account 3,330,113 852,573 2,477,541 290.6%
Other Cash Equivalents 6,621 9,662 (3,041) -31.5%
Total Checking/Savings 7,368,606 4,860,759 2,507,847 51.6%
Accounts Receivable
Accounts Receivable 142 142 - 0.0%
Other Receivables 57,443 105,303 (47,860) -45.5%
Total Accounts Receivable 57,585 105,445 (47,860) -45.4%
Other Current Assets
Prepaid Expenses 28,311 166,354 (138,043) -83.0%
Other Current Assets - - - 0.0%
Total Other Current Assets 28,311 166,354 (138,043) -83.0%
Total Current Assets 7,454,501 5,132,558 2,321,944 45.2%
Fixed Assets
Electronic Equipment 107,942 119,451 (11,510) -9.6%
Office Furniture and Equipment - 58,369 (58,369) -100.0%
Motor Vehicles 87,825 108,035 (20,210) -18.7%
Museum Artifacts 59,705 59,705 - 0.0%
Non-Capitalized Building Renovations - - - 0.0%
Construction in Progress 660,129 265,377 394,752 148.8%
Accumulated Depreciation (43,190) (193,754) 150,564 77.7%
Total Fixed Assets 872,411 417,184 455,227 109.1%
Other Assets
Due From Intercompany 15,055 23,126,594 (23,111,540) -99.9%
Deferred Outflow of Resources 619,121 549,839 69,282 12.6%
Other Assets 33 62 (30) -47.5%
Total Other Assets 634,208 23,676,496 (23,042,287) -97.3%
TOTAL ASSETS 8,961,121 29,226,237 (20,265,117) -69.3%
LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable 102,258 56,876 45,382 79.8%
Accrued Liabilities 58,607 684,346 (625,739) -91.4%
Accrued Leave Payable 172,217 120,066 52,151 43.4%
Other Current Liabilities 2,755,765 324,056 2,431,709 750.4%
Total Current Liabilities 3,088,846 1,185,344 1,903,502 160.6%
Other Liabilities
Due To Intercompany - - - 0.0%
Loans Payable - - - 0.0%
Deferred Inflow of Resources 357,330 517,138 (159,808) -30.9%
Net Pension Liability 1,497,771 1,413,862 83,909 5.9%
Net OPEB Liability 298,563 315,116 (16,553) -5.3%
Total Other Liabilities 2,153,664 2,246,116 (92,452) -4.1%
Total Liabilities 5,242,510 3,431,460 1,811,050 52.8%
Equity
Retained Earnings 2,932,841 25,240,716 (22,307,875) -88.4%
Net Income 785,769 554,061 231,708 41.8%
Total Equity 3,718,611 25,794,777 (22,076,167) -85.6%
TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 8,961,121 29,226,237 (20,265,117) -69.3%
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Fort Monroe Authority
Statement of Net Position - Enterprise Fund (All Sub-Funds)

Accrual Basis - Internal Unaudited

Sept 30, 2024 Sept 30, 2023 $ Change % Change
ASSETS
Current Assets
Checking/Savings
Operating Account & Petty Cash 2,658,392 2,030,979 627,414 30.9%
Restricted Cash Account 275,201 277,984 (2,783) -1.0%
Other Cash Equivalents - - - 0.0%
Total Checking/Savings 2,933,593 2,308,963 624,630 27.1%
Accounts Receivable
Accounts Receivable 712,621 440,547 272,074 61.8%
Other Receivables 7,483 266 7,217 2,712.1%
Total Accounts Receivable 720,104 440,813 279,290 63.4%
Other Current Assets
Prepaid Expenses 187,581 185,335 2,247 1.2%
Other Current Assets 17,619,430 13,312,771 4,306,659 32.4%
Total Other Current Assets 17,807,012 13,498,106 4,308,906 31.9%
Total Current Assets 21,460,709 16,247,882 5,212,827 32.1%
Fixed Assets
Electronic Equipment - - - 0.0%
Office Furniture and Equipment - 16,075 (16,075) -100.0%
Motor Vehicles 9,057 35,666 (26,609) -74.6%
Museum Artifacts - - - 0.0%
Non-Capitalized Building Renovations 473,518 462,184 11,334 2.5%
Construction in Progress 10,568 103,812 (93,245) -89.8%
Accumulated Depreciation (255,443) (247,005) (8,438) -3.4%
Total Fixed Assets 237,699 370,732 (133,033) -35.9%
Other Assets
Due From Intercompany 450,653 13,854,008 (13,403,354) -96.7%
Deferred Outflow of Resources 99,602 88,427 11,175 12.6%
Other Assets - - - 0.0%
Total Other Assets 550,255 13,942,435 (13,392,179) -96.1%
TOTAL ASSETS 22,248,663 30,561,049 (8,312,386) -27.2%
LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable 279,086 73,091 205,996 281.8%
Accrued Liabilities 569,836 602,351 (32,515) -5.4%
Accrued Leave Payable 24,020 24,269 (249) -1.0%
Other Current Liabilities 534,457 451,776 82,682 18.3%
Total Current Liabilities 1,407,400 1,151,486 255,914 22.2%
Other Liabilities
Due To Intercompany 465,708 36,980,602 (36,514,894) -98.7%
Loans Payable - - - 0.0%
Deferred Inflow of Resources 16,333,326 12,568,370 3,764,956 30.0%
Net Pension Liability 240,236 226,777 13,459 5.9%
Net OPEB Liability 47,888 50,543 (2,655) -5.3%
Total Other Liabilities 17,087,158 49,826,292 (32,739,134) -65.7%
Total Liabilities 18,494,558 50,977,778 (32,483,220) -63.7%
Equity
Retained Earnings 3,895,781 (20,277,003) 24,172,784 119.2%
Net Income (141,675) (139,726) (1,949) -1.4%
Total Equity 3,754,106 (20,416,729) 24,170,835 118.4%
TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 22,248,663 30,561,049 (8,312,386) -27.2%
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Fort Monroe Authority
Statement of Net Position - Enterprise Fund (Residential Leasing Sub-Fund)

Accrual Basis - Internal Unaudited

Sept 30, 2024 Sept 30, 2023 $ Change % Change
ASSETS
Current Assets
Checking/Savings
Operating Account & Petty Cash 2,444,480 1,711,678 732,802 42.8%
Restricted Cash Account 275,201 277,984 (2,783) -1.0%
Other Cash Equivalents - - - 0.0%
Total Checking/Savings 2,719,680 1,989,661 730,019 36.7%
Accounts Receivable
Accounts Receivable 3,306 10,064 (6,758) -67.1%
Other Receivables - - - 0.0%
Total Accounts Receivable 3,306 10,064 (6,758) -67.1%
Other Current Assets
Prepaid Expenses 55,908 53,497 2,411 4.5%
Other Current Assets - - - 0.0%
Total Other Current Assets 55,908 53,497 2,411 4.5%
Total Current Assets 2,778,894 2,053,222 725,672 35.3%
Fixed Assets
Electronic Equipment - - - 0.0%
Office Furniture and Equipment - 16,075 (16,075) -100.0%
Motor Vehicles 9,057 35,666 (26,609) -74.6%
Museum Artifacts - - - 0.0%
Non-Capitalized Building Renovations - - - 0.0%
Construction in Progress - - - 0.0%
Accumulated Depreciation (8,678) (49,551) 40,873 82.5%
Total Fixed Assets 379 2,190 (1,811) -82.7%
Other Assets
Due From Intercompany 382,717 7,467,196 (7,084,479) -94.9%
Deferred Outflow of Resources 99,602 88,427 11,175 12.6%
Other Assets - - - 0.0%
Total Other Assets 482,319 7,555,623 (7,073,304) -93.6%
TOTAL ASSETS 3,261,592 9,611,035 (6,349,443) -66.1%
LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable 24,712 29,786 (5,074) -17.0%
Accrued Liabilities 251,380 128,313 123,067 95.9%
Accrued Leave Payable 11,844 13,315 (1,471) -11.0%
Other Current Liabilities 416,656 355,302 61,354 17.3%
Total Current Liabilities 704,592 526,715 177,877 33.8%
Other Liabilities
Due To Intercompany 10,285 1,009,045 (998,761) -99.0%
Loans Payable - - - 0.0%
Deferred Inflow of Resources 57,314 82,947 (25,633) -30.9%
Net Pension Liability 240,236 226,777 13,459 5.9%
Net OPEB Liability 47,888 50,543 (2,655) -5.3%
Total Other Liabilities 355,723 1,369,312 (1,013,590) -74.0%
Total Liabilities 1,060,315 1,896,028 (835,713) -44.1%
Equity
Retained Earnings 1,838,827 7,372,018 (5,533,191) -75.1%
Net Income 362,451 342,990 19,461 5.7%
Total Equity 2,201,278 7,715,008 (5,513,730) -71.5%
TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 3,261,592 9,611,035 (6,349,443) -66.1%
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Fort Monroe Authority

Statement of Net Position - Enterprise Fund (Commerical Leasing Sub-Fund)

Accrual Basis - Internal Unaudited

ASSETS
Current Assets
Checking/Savings
Operating Account & Petty Cash
Restricted Cash Account
Other Cash Equivalents
Total Checking/Savings
Accounts Receivable
Accounts Receivable
Other Receivables
Total Accounts Receivable
Other Current Assets
Prepaid Expenses
Other Current Assets
Total Other Current Assets
Total Current Assets
Fixed Assets
Electronic Equipment
Office Furniture and Equipment
Motor Vehicles
Museum Artifacts
Non-Capitalized Building Renovations
Construction in Progress
Accumulated Depreciation
Total Fixed Assets
Other Assets
Due From Intercompany
Deferred Outflow of Resources
Other Assets
Total Other Assets
TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable
Accrued Liabilities
Accrued Leave Payable
Other Current Liabilities
Total Current Liabilities
Other Liabilities
Due To Intercompany
Loans Payable
Deferred Inflow of Resources
Net Pension Liability
Net OPEB Liability
Total Other Liabilities
Total Liabilities
Equity
Retained Earnings
Net Income
Total Equity
TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY

Sept 30, 2024 Sept 30, 2023 $ Change % Change
169,162 230,185 (61,023) -26.5%
- - - 0.0%
- - - 0.0%
169,162 230,185 (61,023) -26.5%
397,808 361,285 36,522 10.1%
7,483 266 7,217 2,712.1%
405,291 361,552 43,739 12.1%
122,925 122,925 0) 0.0%
17,464,240 13,155,178 4,309,062 32.8%
17,587,165 13,278,102 4,309,062 32.5%
18,161,618 13,869,839 4,291,779 30.9%
- - - 0.0%
- - - 0.0%
- - - 0.0%
- - - 0.0%
473,518 462,184 11,334 2.5%
10,568 103,812 (93,245) -89.8%
(246,765) (197,454) (49,311) -25.0%
237,320 368,542 (131,222) -35.6%
- - - 0.0%
- - - 0.0%
- - - 0.0%
- - - 0.0%
18,398,938 14,238,382 4,160,557 29.2%
29,049 19,689 9,360 47.5%
293,061 405,560 (112,499) -27.7%
12,176 10,954 1,222 11.2%
99,724 66,713 33,011 49.5%
434,010 502,916 (68,906) -13.7%
69,522 23,229,311 (23,159,789) -99.7%
- - - 0.0%
16,276,012 12,485,423 3,790,589 30.4%
- - - 0.0%
- - - 0.0%
16,345,534 35,714,734 (19,369,200) -54.2%
16,779,544 36,217,650 (19,438,106) -53.7%
1,978,403 (21,428,962) 23,407,365 109.2%
(359,009) (550,306) 191,297 34.8%
1,619,395 (21,979,268) 23,598,663 107.4%
18,398,938 14,238,382 4,160,557 29.2%
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Statement of Net Position - Enterprise Fund (Venue Rentals and Events Sub-Fund)

Accrual Basis - Internal Unaudited

ASSETS
Current Assets
Checking/Savings
Operating Account & Petty Cash
Restricted Cash Account
Other Cash Equivalents
Total Checking/Savings
Accounts Receivable
Accounts Receivable
Other Receivables
Total Accounts Receivable
Other Current Assets
Prepaid Expenses
Other Current Assets
Total Other Current Assets
Total Current Assets
Fixed Assets
Electronic Equipment
Office Furniture and Equipment
Motor Vehicles
Museum Artifacts
Non-Capitalized Building Renovations
Construction in Progress
Accumulated Depreciation
Total Fixed Assets
Other Assets
Due From Intercompany
Deferred Outflow of Resources
Other Assets
Total Other Assets
TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable
Accrued Liabilities
Accrued Leave Payable
Other Current Liabilities
Total Current Liabilities
Other Liabilities
Due To Intercompany
Loans Payable
Deferred Inflow of Resources
Net Pension Liability
Net OPEB Liability
Total Other Liabilities
Total Liabilities
Equity
Retained Earnings
Net Income
Total Equity
TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY

Fort Monroe Authority

Sept 30, 2024

Sept 30, 2023

$ Change

% Change

39,750

75,056

(35,306)

-47.0%
0.0%
0.0%

39,750

75,056

(35,306)

-47.0%

0.0%
0.0%

6,967

7,131

(164)

0.0%

-2.3%
0.0%

6,967

7,131

(164)

-2.3%

46,718

82,187

(35,470)

-43.2%

0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%

0.0%

0.0%
0.0%
0.0%

0.0%

46,718

82,187

(35,470)

-43.2%

2,326
6,933

18,077

2,430
1,933

29,761

(104)
5,000

(11,684)

-4.3%
258.6%
0.0%
-39.3%

27,336

3,273

34,124

1,503

(6,788)

1,770

-19.9%

117.7%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%

3,273

1,503

1,770

117.7%

30,609

25,522
(9,413)

35,628

48,055

(1,495)

(5,018)

(22,533)
(7,918)

-14.1%

-46.9%
-529.5%

16,109

46,560

(30,451)

-65.4%

46,718

82,187

(35,470)

-43.2%
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Fort Monroe Authority
Statement of Net Position - Enterprise Fund (Utility Sub-Fund)

Accrual Basis - Internal Unaudited

Sept 30, 2024 Sept 30, 2023 $ Change % Change
ASSETS
Current Assets
Checking/Savings
Operating Account & Petty Cash 5,000 14,060 (9,060) -64.4%
Restricted Cash Account - - - 0.0%
Other Cash Equivalents - - - 0.0%
Total Checking/Savings 5,000 14,060 (9,060) -64.4%
Accounts Receivable
Accounts Receivable 311,507 69,198 242,309 350.2%
Other Receivables - - - 0.0%
Total Accounts Receivable 311,507 69,198 242,309 350.2%
Other Current Assets
Prepaid Expenses 1,781 1,781 - 0.0%
Other Current Assets 155,191 157,593 (2,403) -1.5%
Total Other Current Assets 156,972 159,375 (2,403) -1.5%
Total Current Assets 473,479 242,633 230,846 95.1%
Fixed Assets
Electronic Equipment - - - 0.0%
Office Furniture and Equipment - - - 0.0%
Motor Vehicles - - - 0.0%
Museum Artifacts - - - 0.0%
Non-Capitalized Building Renovations - - - 0.0%
Construction in Progress - - - 0.0%
Accumulated Depreciation - - - 0.0%
Total Fixed Assets - - - 0.0%
Other Assets
Due From Intercompany 67,936 6,386,812 (6,318,875) -98.9%
Deferred Outflow of Resources - - - 0.0%
Other Assets - - - 0.0%
Total Other Assets 67,936 6,386,812 (6,318,875) -98.9%
TOTAL ASSETS 541,415 6,629,445 (6,088,030) -91.8%
LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable 223,000 21,186 201,813 952.6%
Accrued Liabilities 18,463 66,545 (48,082) -72.3%
Accrued Leave Payable - - - 0.0%
Other Current Liabilities - - - 0.0%
Total Current Liabilities 241,462 87,731 153,731 175.2%
Other Liabilities
Due To Intercompany 382,628 12,740,742 (12,358,114) -97.0%
Loans Payable - - - 0.0%
Deferred Inflow of Resources - - - 0.0%
Net Pension Liability - - - 0.0%
Net OPEB Liability - - - 0.0%
Total Other Liabilities 382,628 12,740,742 (12,358,114) -97.0%
Total Liabilities 624,090 12,828,473 (12,204,383) -95.1%
Equity
Retained Earnings 53,029 (6,268,115) 6,321,143 100.8%
Net Income (135,704) 69,086 (204,790) -296.4%
Total Equity (82,675) (6,199,028) 6,116,353 98.7%
TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 541,415 6,629,445 (6,088,030) -91.8%
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FORT MONROE

—— Whete i Los——

2025 FMA Finance Committee Meeting Calendar

All meetings start at 12:00 PM

Date
Thursday, February 6, 2025
Thursday, April 10, 2025
Thursday, June 12, 2025
Thursday, September 11, 2025

Thursday, November 13, 2025

Meeting
FMA Finance Committee
FMA Finance Committee
FMA Finance Committee
FMA Finance Committee

FMA Finance Committee

Location

FMVEC

FMVEC

FMVEC

FMVEC

FMVEC
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